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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ex rel.,
ERVIN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
Civil Action No.: 96-CV-1258 (LFO) (AK)

Plaintiffs

V.

THE HAMILTON SECURITIES GROUP, ET
AL.

Defendants

HAMILTON SECURITIES GROUP, INC.
ET AL.
Civil Action No.: 96-CV-1258 (LFO)
Plaintiffs (AK) ‘
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_-ERVIN & ASSOCIATES, INC

Defendants

DEFENDANTS’ ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM TO PLAINTIFFS’
COMPLAINT

Defendants Ervin and Associates and John J. Ervin (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “Ervin” or “Defendant Ervin”) hereby answer the--al-lﬂegations set forth in
Plaintiffs’ Complaint as follows:'

1. Defendants deny as phrased the allegations in Paragraph 1 of Plaintiffs’

Complaint.

! Though Hamilton is listed as a Defendant above, they have filed suit against Dcfendﬁnt Ervininacase
that has been consolidated into the above matter and will therefore be referred to as Plaintiff or Plaintiffs.
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2. The allegations of paragraph 2 contain jurisdictional allegations to which
no response is required. To the extent a response is deemed necessary, Defendants deny
the same.

3. The allegations of paragraph 3 contain jurisdictional allegations to which
no response is required. To the extent a response is deemed necessary, Defendants deny
the same.

4, Defendants admit that Hamilton Securities Group, Inc., is a Delaware
corporéation. Defendants are .without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or
deny the remaining allegations in paragraph 4, and therefore deny the same.

5. Defendants admit that Hamilton Securities Advisory Services, Inc., is a

Delaware corporation. Defendants are without sufficient knowledge or information to

__admit or deny the remait}in_ghallegation__s in paragraph 5, and therefore deny the same.

Ervin is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in Maryland.

Defendants deny the remaining allegations contained in paragraph 6 of Plaintiffs’

Complaint.

7. As to the allegations in paragraph 7, Defendants admit that John J. Ervin 1s
the President of Ervin and Associates. Defendants deny the remaining allegations in
paragraph 7 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint.

8. Defendants are without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or
deny the allegations in paragraph 8, and therefore deny the same.

9.  Denied.
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i10.  Defendants are without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or
deny the allegations in paragraph 10, and therefore deny the same.

11.  Denied.

12.  Defendants are without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or
deny the allegations in paragraph 12, and therefore deny the same.

13. As to the first and second sentences in paragraph 13, Defendants are
without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the allegations, and
therefore deny the same. As to the last sentence in paragraph 13, it is denied.

14. As to the allegations in paragraph 14, Defendants admit that it bid on
a very small number of asset management and financial advisor contracts. Defendants
deny the remaining allegations in paragraph 14 of Plaintiffs’ Complaint.

15, Admitted.

16 Defendants admit that Hamilton was awarded a “crosscutting” confract

from HUD. Defendants are without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny
the remaining allegations in paragraph 16, and therefore deny the same.

17 Denied.

18 As to the allegations in paragraph 18, Defendants admit that they filed
the Bivens action. Defendants deny as phrased the remaining allegations in paragraph 18
of Plaintiffs’ Complaint.

19.  Defendants admit that the referenced Complaint speaks for itself.
Furthermore, Defendants deny that the allegations in the Bivens’ lawsuit are false. All

remaining allegations in Paragraph 19 are denied.
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20.  As to the allegations in paragraph 20, Defendants admit that they acted as
the relator for purposes of filing the gui tam suit and that the suit was unsealed for very
limited purposes. Defendants deny all remaining allegations contained in paragraph 20 of
Plaintiffs’ Complaint.

21 As to the allegations in paragraph 21, Defendants admit that articles
concerning the Plaintiffs appeared in several publications and that the articles speak for
themselves. Defendants deny the remaining allegations in paragraph 21 of Plaintiffs’
Complaint.

22 As to the allegations in paragraph 22, Defendants admit that an
investigation of the Plaintiffs was begun by the HUD Office of the Inspector General and
that said investigation continues and that as a result of said investigation several subpoena

~were issued. Defendants deny the remaining al,iegatisr*z? in paragraph 22 of Plaintiffs’

Complaint.
23 Denied.
24, Denied.
25 Denied.
26.  Denied.

27.  Defendants repeat and re-allege their responses as set forth in paragraphs 1
through 26 of the Answer as if set forth at length herein.

28.  Defendants admit that Hamilton had a contract with HUD. Defendants are
without sufficient knowledge or information to admit or deny the remaining allegations in
paragraph 28, and therefore deny the same.

29.  Admitted.
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30.  Denied.

31.  Denied.

32.  Defendants repeat and re-allege their responses as set forth in paragraphs 1
through 31 of the Answer as if set forth at length herein.

33. The allegations contained in paragraph 33 contain conclusions of law to
which no responses are required and which are, therefore, deemed denied. To the extent

that the allegations of paragraph 33 are deemed not to contain conclusions of law, then

Defendants deny all such allegations.

34. Demed.
35. Denied.
36. Denied.

37.  Defendants repeat and re-allege their responses as set forth in paragraphs1 .

i —thirough. 36 of the Answer.as.if set. forth.at length herein

38. Denied.
39. Denied.
40, Denied.

41 Defendants deny each and every allegation not specifically admitted

above,

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

First Affirmative Defense
The Complaint fails to state a claim for which relief can be granted.
Second Affirmative Defense

All claims set forth in the Complaint are barred by the statute of limitations.
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Third Affirmative Defense
All claims set forth in the Complaint are barred by the doctrine of waiver.
Fourth Affirmative Defense
All claims set forth in the Complaint are barred by the doctrine of estoppel.
Fifth Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs have been contributorily negligent in bringing about the alleged
damages of which they complain.
Sixth Affirmative Defense
All claims set forth in the Complaint are barred by a lack of damages to the

Plaintiffs.

Seventh Affirmative Defense

__Any alleged damages proven by Plaintiffs were caused by the Plaintiffs’ own acts

and/or-omissions-and not by any actions.of the Defendants

Eighth Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs’ claims are barred because Plaintiffs’ alleged damages, if any, were or
may have been proximately caused by acts and/or omissions of persons or entities other

than the Defendants.
Ninth Affirmative Defense

The Plaintiffs’ injuries, losses and damages, if any, resulted from intentional,
negligent or supervening negligent acts of others.
Tenth Affirmative Defense
All claims set forth in the Complaint and any alleged damages to the Plaintiffs are

barred by a lack of proximate cause.
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Eleventh Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by the doctrine of unclean hands,
Twelfth Affirmative Defense
Plaintiffs’ claims are barred by the doctrine of in pari delecti.
Thirteenth Affirmative Defense
Any and all statements made by Defendants during the course of ongoing
litigation are protected by the litigation privilege.
Fourteenth Affirmative Defense
No government contractor that is subject to the federal acquisition regulations can
have an expectation of future contracts.

Fifteenth Affirmative Defense

___ Defendants reserve the right to assert additional defenses that may come to light

].1.. . i ]

WHEREFORE, Defendant Ervin and Associates and John J. Ervin request that
this Honorable Court dismiss this Complaint with prejudice.

DEFENDANTS’ COUNTERCLAIM

Defendants/ Counter-Plaintiffs, Ervin & Associates, Inc. and John J. Ervin for
their Counterclaim state as follows:

PARTIES INVOLVED

1. Upon mformation and belief, Plaintiff/Counter-Defendant, Hamilton
Securities Group, Inc., (hereinafter “HSG”) is a Delaware corporation with its principal

place of business in the District of Columbia.
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2. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff/Counter-Defendant, Hamilton
Securities Advisory Services, Inc. (hereinafter “HSAC”) is a Delaware corporation and
subsidiary of HSG with its principal place of business in the District of Columbia.

3. Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff, Ervin and Associates, Inc. (hereinafter
“Brvin & Assoc.”) is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in
Maryland

4, Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff John J. Ervin (hereinafter “Ervin”) is the

President of Ervin & Associates.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

5. On June 5, 1996, these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs filed a Bivens action
in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia against, inter alia, the

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (hereinafer "HUL').

. these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs act

for a qui tam action also filed under seal in the United States District Court for the

District of Columbia.

7. Both suits allege that there existed widespread corruption and favoritism

in a HUD directed direct loan auction program.

8. These Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants had been actively mvolved in the
loan auction program as financial advisors to HUD.

9. The HUD OIG has independent authority under the federal inspector
General Act to investigate allegations of fraud, waste, and abuse. Pursuant to this

authority, the HUD OIG, in cooridination with the Department of Justice, controlled all
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aspects of the investigation, including the issues to be investigated and the ultimate
duration of the investigation.

10.  Part of the investigation, which was conducted under the auspices of this
Court, focused on the activities of these Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants as théy related to
the HUD loan auction program, and involved the issuance of subpoenas aimed at
obtaining certain records and other evidence held by these Plaintiffs.

11. On November 19, 1997, this Court ordered a partial lifting of the seal in
the qui tam case to notify these Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants that they had b.een named
as defendants in the qui tam action and were under investigation by the HUD OIG and the

Department of Justice.

12. On April 21, 1999, Hamilton’s counsel in a widely published letter to

while acknowledging that Hamilton did not know the allegations in the qui fam suit. (See
Letter to Sen. Fred Thompson attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 1).

13,  Between 1998 and 1999, Hamilton’s counsel filed various complaints
against Inépector General Gaffney with the President’s Council on Integrity and
Efficiency (“PCIE”) in connection with the investigation of Hamilton. In each case, the
Inspector General was exonerated.

14. In May 1999, without standing, Hamilton Securities Group moved this
court to unseal the file and to oppose the Attorney General’s requests for further

extensions of time.
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15. On June 4, 1999, Hamilton in an attempt to break the seal in the qui tam
case and to determine the content and direction of the investigation through discovery
filed this suit in the Superior Court of the District of Columbia.

16.  Upset at the inability to break the qui tam seal and learn the details of the
ongoing iﬁvestigation throngh discovery, these Plaintiffs conjured up all sorts of
conspiracy theories in an effort to explain away any improper activities they may have
been involved in.

17 Prior to the initiation of her claims against Ervin and Ervin and Associates,
the founder and former President of Hamilton, C. Austin Fitts, made allegations and
accusations against others, asserting that they had been the cause of damage which

Hamilton now attributes to Ervin and Ervin and Associates. These allegations and

_accusations are legally and factually inconsistent with the legal theories and factual

Web site through which she posits that the White House and the HUD OIG have

intentionally ruined Hamilton and her business prospects.

18. By way of another example, in 2 May 1999 article entitled “From the
Wilderness,” C. Austin Fitts claims that all of the injuries suffered by these
Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants are directly related to the creation of a certain type of
financial software by these Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants that revealed “ethnic cleansing”
being carried out by the United States Government and vartous intelligence organizations.
{(See Article entitled “From the Wildemess” attached hereto and incorporated herein by

referenced as Exhibit 2).
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19.  In retaliation for the filing of the qui tam lawsuit, Plaintiffs/Counter-
Defendants instituted the instant suit against these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs
knowing that their claims were frivolous and in an effort to force Ervin and Associates to
drop their prosecution of the qui tam lawsﬁit

COUNT I
(Abuse of Process)

20. Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 19
- of the Counterclaim as though fully set forth herein.

21. The Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants knew prior to the filing of their lawsuit
that Ervin and Ervin and Associates were neither legally nor factually the cause of any of
the alleged injuries of which they complain.r

22. The Affidavit and words C. Austin Fitts, founder and former Preesident of

T Plainti f/Counter-Defendant Hamiiton make it clear that tﬁej}'ii;\}e asserted that others

have caused the injuries which they now assert were caused by Ervin. (See Affidavit of
C. Austin Fitts and incorporated herein by reference as Ex. 3).

23. At all times in question herein, the Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants knew
before they filed this suit that these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs had absolutely nothing
to do with any injury suffered by them. (See Id.).

24, The Affidavit and words of C. Austin Fitts, founder and former President
of Plaintiff/Counter-Defendant Hamilton make it clear that these Plaintiffs/Counter-
Defendants have asserted that others have caused the injuries which they now assert were

caused by Ervin. (See Affidavit of C. Austin Fitts and incorporated herein by reference
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as Ex. 3); (See Statements of C. Austin Fitts attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference as Ex. 4). |

25. By filing a suit against the Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs in the face of
Ms. Fitts’ admission that someone else caused their injuries, Plaintiffs/Counter-
Defendants demonstrated that they has an ulterior motive to file this suit, namely to
harass and intimidate these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs in an effort to prevent any
- more of their improper acts from coming to light.

26.  Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants had a further ulterior motive in improperly
filing suit to break the seal on the qui tam case.

27.  The Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ ulterior motives are clear from the

writings of the founder of Plaintiff Hamilton, C. Austin Fitts, namely that these

Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants wished to_illegally hamess the machinery of the judicial

28. By filing this suit to harass and intimidate these Defendants/Counter-
Plaintiffs and in an effort to improperly break the seal on the qui tam case, the
Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants undertook to illegitimately use the macilinery of the
judicial process in a perverse manner as a tool to enact revenge against these
Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs for bringing to light the improper acts undertaken by the

Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants.

29. It is clear that the Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ objective in perverting
the use of the judicial system by filing this vexatious lawsuit was to achieve a goal that
was not otherwise available to them under the law, namely a measure of revenge against

these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs.
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30. ° The Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ filing of the instant lawsuit with full
knowledge that these Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs did nothing to cause them any injury
constitutes a gross misuse of the scales of justice and an abuse of process.

31.  As a result of the Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ abuse of process, these
Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs have suffered substantial compensatory damages in the
amount of $250,000.

32. The Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants’ actions wére intentional, reckless, and
malicious as set forth more partiéularly héreunder wﬁi;:h enti;le Defendants/Counter—
Plaintiffs to punitive damages.

WHEREFORE, Defendant Ervin and Associates and John J. Ervin request that
this Honorable Court enter judgment in their favor as to their Counterclaim and that the

Court award to them the sum of $250,000 in compensatory damages and $500,000 in

Jjustice.requires, . .

punitive damages. 2

Respectfully submitted,

Aaron L. Handleman (#48728)
Craig S. Brodsky (#454924)
Eccleston & Wolf, P.C.

1750 K Street, N.W.

Suite 450
Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 857-1696 telephone
(202) 857-0762 facsimile
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Wayne &. Travell (#372658) |
Venable, Baetjer & Howard, L.L.P.
2010 Corporate Ridge, Suite 400
McLean, Virginia 22102
(703) 760-1927 telephone
(703) 821-8949 facsimilie

Attorneys for Defendants John J. Ervin and
Ervin & Associates and Counterclaimants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 12® day of March, 2001, a copy of the
foregoing Defendants’ Answer and Counterclaim was mailed, first-class, postage prepaid

to:

Michael J. McManus, Esquire
Kenneth E. Ryan, Esquire
Brian A. Coleman, Esquire
Drinker Biddle & Reath, L.L.P.
1500 K Street, NW, Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20005

Kathleen H. McGuan, Esquire
Reed Smith, LLP

1301 K Street, N.-W.

Suite 1100-East Tower
Washington, D.C. 20005

e

s oo Aaron 1. Handleman
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LA OFFICES

ORINKER BIODLE & REATH LLP

1348 CATHUT BIRGEY SUITE 1100 2Tt 300
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April 21, 1999
HAND-DELIVERED
The Honarable Fred Thompaon
Chairman, Governmenz Aflairs Committee
Room SD-523
Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510-6250

Re: Hamilton Securities Group, Ine,, and Hamilton Secuyitiea Advisary
©  Services

Dear Senatoc Thompsan. '

We represent Hamiltoa Securities Group, Inc. and Hamilton Securities Advisory
Services, colloctively referred to as “Hamilton". Hamilton is an investment banldng
firm that for a oumber of years was an outside contractor to the Deparament of Hotia-
.ing and Urban Development. In the mid 90s, Hamilton served in an instrumental
capacity as HUD's financial advisor developing and implemcenting a number of sales of
HUD'%s mortguge Joan portfolin which saved the U.S. taxpayers in excess of $2.1 billion
in credit subsidy savings. In Jane of 1996, another HUD contractor, Ervin & Associ-
ates, fled smuit agminst HUD, the Small Business ‘Administration, then-Sceretary of
the &mlamﬂ.mdasﬂedqmmhmtmanumbadwm
partiés, Hamilten was not named as & defendant in the Bivens action, but whils we do

rrrrr .pot.know.the allegutions..orthe identity.of-the.other.defendants,-we.do-know-that

Hamilton was named as a defendant in the qui tam action. Asamu.ltofthescm
lawsuits, Susan Gaflncy, the HUD Inspecte m.m&:mjggg o of

ASNRIAS DUrportedly based on the @
of 1996, ﬁwHUDommoflnspectochncralaawdmwbpommHmﬂtm
requesting the production of hundreds of thousands of pages of Hamilton's docu-
ments, Hamﬂmnnnmedmdybegmtowurkwﬂhlhcomtopmduccthcmquuwd

documents.

In mid-November of 1996, Hamilton discovered the passibility of an error in the
computer optimiization program used 10 determine the winning bids in one of the
mortpage loan sales. Hamiiton immedlately investigated the matter, includiog mcet-
ings with the subcontractar who developed the program, Lucemt Techoologies.

" Hamilton reported this matter in carly December of 1996 to HUD, and followed-up
with a written report to HUD of its investigation results. Hamilton believed that any

18491999
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April 21, 1999

- AR AABNE FOTE TN

Omekenr BIOOLE & REATH LLP

The Honorable Fred Thompson

Page 2

potential error had been corrected, and that the marter was closed. Hamilton heard
nothing more on this matter, and in fact, continucd te work on the deveclopraent and
implementation of futire mortgage loan sales. Then on October 17, 1997, HUD sud-

.denly and without warning terminated Hamilton's coatracts. Even though at thet

tme HUD apparently had not investigated the matter further, it dted the computer
optimization model as the basis for Hamilton’s termingtion. HUD refugsed to pay
Harmilton for worlk that Hamilton had already completed at the time of the termination
(approximately $2 million), and that dispure is now in the Federal Caurt of Claims,

One week later, on October 24, 1997, the HUD OIG served a third subpoena on
Hamilton, which Hamilton immediately began to rcapond to, All tolled, Hamilton, has

gpent in excess of $2 million responding o the OIO subpoenas. While the HUD OIG .

has repeatedly elaimed that it is investigating both civil and criminal matters pur-
portedly involving Hamilton, after nearly three years of this “investigadon® the OIG
haaukmnaromnucﬁon,althoughitdmoouﬁnuemburdmﬂamﬂmnﬁthm-
questa for yet additional document production.

We represent Hamilton in all matters relating to the actions of the HUD OIG.
QOvexr the course of our working on it, there have been many aspects of this case which
havebemmpuzdmsmua.thﬁxg;mdproc:dumwbich.inourm.m
unexplainable within the context of how cases are normally and reasonably handled.
For example, ather than oblique references to the scaled qui tam complaint and the
253-page Bivens Gling, the government has repeatedly alluded to scrious critminal and
scrious wrongdoing on the part of our clients, yet refuses to provide any meaningfirl

ﬁ?ohngbuedummpurpmedm The subpoenae issued by the HUD

G_a‘.leml

Susan Gaffoey arc unusually broad for this type of investigation,

- marion. Andriau inio

gd.one consistent with pro-
of investipations, either by the

15 not conzigicut with Normal

7 3 Ol mapector Ueteral, 10 other wo

investigatory procedures, This is highlighted Judith Hetherton's heavy involve-
mmtind:ismmu',whichmrmedsmymmqauthoﬁtychcmyhawu
Cmmsdto&wle.mdwhichhaaindudcdanmmdina:yhjccﬁmoﬁuwin-
correct yet sensationalist and prejudiced inquiries of a very personal panire into the
lives of certain parties to this matter, Investigations are nsually run by investigators,
not the OIG's counsel. Yot that is clearly what is happening here, This indicates an
untgual interest by the 1G herself, who we now belicve has a personal agenda incon-
'sisrm:withthcauﬂwﬁtymdmdntcofhaoﬁdalposiﬁun. -

Sinuenurin&oducﬁontothiumcnmlyoneymago,whavemp&wdly
aﬂ:edﬂ:cmmmgdnwghwdﬁermﬂnquhimandwmyaemwm-
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sioms, just preciscly what is the nature, focus, intent and purposc of what to s now
appears to be a politically motvated, never-ending und pointess investigation of
Hamilton and some of its founer employees, To date, the information we have ob-
tained leads us to believe thar this matter is being driven by questionable motives, for
which the HUD OIG is directly responsible and accountable.

As a martér of first course, it would teem to be a simple encugh propesition to
at least be able to find out who ia actually leading this investigation. Apparcatly no
one is, or-at least no one has heen willing to accept or aclknowledge that respon-

- sibility. Both Dan Van Hom (the Assistant Unired States Attormicy represcuting the

HUD QIG in court proceedings in thie matter) and Ms. Hetherton have repeatedly
advised us that ncither one of them is maning the investigntion, and we have been -
directed to AUSAs Tony Alexis (civil) and Dick Chapman [criminel) as those in charge.
We have miet with both Mr. Alexia and Mr. Chapman, who impressed us as being pra-
fessiona), reasonable and straightforward in their discussions with us, They both ad-
vised us that they too wore not running the investigation, but they belicved that Ma.
Hetherton was, We believe thar she is, at least on & day-to-day basis. Given that Mr.
Van Horn and Ms. Hetherton have repeatedly suggested both civil and criminal jmpli-
cations from whatever *it” ia, [ bélieve we arc at the very least entitled to know who is
running the show,

eqml{ymﬁtuioﬁshjuntwhaiis being investigated? We have repeatedly
azled that question, and after nearly three years of an investigation | am amared at

‘the govemnments inability o articulate any mcsningful response to that question. 1

fore, and while [ do not expect the government to give away their strategy or the inher

woritings of their case, [ bave never had anyone so unwilling or unabic to 1l me sim-
- - - — o 2o d .‘ !.I!.*r@!; _ ,!;Ms-ﬁﬂ, ..E _

~ply-and-preci
have felt free to suggest in court proccedinga that si

gmﬁcnm wrongdoing bas taken

g Tl 11 H g nal hw el ag—v Ly

A,  PHLGIILRNS CVeT] T1IES s ,el e —vley LA Ao b ) = 5 =
Spotkdn, United States Districe Court for the District of Columbia) with some indica-

tion of what they are investigating for its in camera revicw, Yet for some unknown and
unecxplained reason they are afraid 1o eddress that issue with us. Initially, we con-
cluded that whatever it ia that has been given the Court in sctret must indicate that
the investigation is focused in reality on some other party, and not on Hamilton, for
we could think of no other legitimate reasan why that bazic information was not

" -shared with us. We also believe that whatever it iz the OIG has wld the Court must

be so irrefutably disproven by the facts that disclosing that information to us weuld
give ua cause to have the investipation terminated immediately, and those responsibic
for it punished, But it appears thar the truth is oven more ominous than that: this is
not wimply just a case of an investigation yielding no resulta, but rather an investiga.
tion aimad from ite inception ar destruction rather than iluminarion. '
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. Ms.HethatnnhastoldusmactthUDOIGbegmitsinmﬁgaﬁnnindulyof
1996, at the requiest of the U.S. Attomey’s Ofice. The HUD OIG was to invesndyate
the allegations contained in Mr. Ervin's qui tam suit, flcd in June of 1996, Thar suit
mdmdmmhsmdammmmﬂmhnmbmmdemd‘myof
the aflegations contained in that lawsuit. Therefore, for her to tell us that Hamilton is
being investigated forthcaﬂmdmniudinthequitamistohﬂuanothing ar ali,
Yet Mr. Van Horn and Ma. Hﬁhmhmuhﬁoualymthouaﬂmﬁom,mthey
. were the premisc for Mr. Van Horn’s in camern submissions 1o the Court., By now, as
a result of the past t™wo anz-o half years of production of documents, Mr, Van Horn
has had access to virtually all of Hamilton's documents. How is tieat neither Mr, Van
Horn nor the OIG can tell us the specifics? It is fundamentally untair that Hamilton
hubmmbjmtedmnumusmmmmepm,mnjmmdstammmnhom
potential civil and criminal wrongdeing for three years without being able to respond
to these secretallegations. - .- . ST N -

The HUD QIG also asscrts that Hamilton is being investigated as a result of the
allcgations in Mr. Ervin's Bivens action, but that too tells us absalutely nothing. Onr
question has always been rather pointed and direet: Preciscly what is it that
Ramilton or any of its employees did wrang? The Bivens action sheds no meaningful
light on that. Rirst, Himilton is not even a defendant. Second, while Hamilton is

i in the complaint, the beat that can be gleaned from those reforences is
" that those defendants who are alleged to have done something wrong used Hamilton
% do so. What are the accusations that Hamiltoa did wrong?

againat Helen Dunlap, former Asxistant Socretary of HUD; Henry Cisneros, former
Secretary of HUD; Philip Lader, former Administrator of the Small Business Adminis-

N ) - ! _“ . e, 3 ' s e ;ﬂ" o
comiplaine describes itselfin 1 12, which states:

reduced 0 ita csscnce, this complsint is about power, money and
Dunlap’s cloae relationships with EUD's contracters and sabcontractors.
The thrust of this Complaint is that Dunlap has usurped control and
exercised unlawful influence over HUD's contract procurement process
to confer huge procurements on her favored handpicked contractors and
pesonal friends and-companions, and to prevent Ervin fom winning
new coatracts or have its existing contracts renewed or extended. Her
efforts, and those of individuals at HUD under her control, sre arches-
trated to bypass the normal procurement processes which are intended
to prevent the very abuses to whick Dunlap has subjected and is sub-
. jecting Ervin and others,
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Much of the complaint deals with Ervin's allegations that Ms, Dunlap abused
her power 10 discriminate against him and other white males, specifically alleging that
Ms. Dunlap had turmed HUD into *white bay's hell”, yet ironically alleging at the aame
time that the benefidaries of Ma. Duniep’s actions were prominent Wall Street big
money firme - firms predominantly, populated, directed and run by white men. -
Hamilton is nat directly accused of any wrongdoing, but is mentioned in the com-
Pleint as a woman-owned company which did obtain HUD contracts, and whose cop-
Tacts were extended.  Hamilton did act as HUD's financial advisor for HUD's loan
sales, and Ervin does assert that the optimization model empioyed by Hamilton used
in sclceting the successfil bidders was “intcntionally complex”, piving “advantagea” to
only the biggest bidders, a curicus allegation given that the complaint also acknow-
ledges that in the first loan salc, amall investors were in fact succeszful. But these -
flimsy assertions can and should have been readily and quickiy investigated, and are
hardly justification for the OlG's oppressive actions. - S R :

Thexe are additional factocs which demonstrate that the OIG's aasertion that
the investigation is based on the qui tam and Bivens complainta simply makes no
sensc. For example, the Bivens matter makes complaints abour Williams Adley
(another HUD contractor) and suggests improper conduct relating to the coniyacts be-
tween Williame Adley and HUD and Williams Adley and Hamilton. Yet, in an audit
report issued by the OIG mare,than three months after the Bivens action was filed,
and a month efter the CIG isyued its first subpoenac w Hamilton, some Williams
Adley contracts were noted as having been andited. It is inconceivable to us that if
the OIG was truly concemned about the Bryin allegations, it would not have locked fur-

”Endnatv;ﬁmﬁmnduﬁngthemmofhiathrwﬁmpumito(thcmmmc.

mwidmechuaurﬁmdhmywayimpﬁcqﬁngwtminmgdohg. Thus, the

We nlso know that John Ervin made ahout $7 million a year servigng toogt-
PHEES T HUD, 5nid Bic has admutted that hc Joscs out i those igans are sold to

private-sector companies. Priar to the commencement of the loan .seles, Ervin was a
conmiatent beneficiery of HUD contracts. Betwoen 1989 and 1994, he won more than

- $25 million in HUD contracts. His finn, Ervin & Associates, grew from & taff of five 1o

more tham 40 people, although the head count has fallen back significantly aince the
loan sales began. Yet, this is the man on whose word this investigation has begun,
and on whosc allegation the investigation is based? While Mr. Ervin has ugly motives
for destroying Hamilton, and may be acting in collusion with the OIG, we believe that
the OIG has its own motives for destroying Hamilton.

' The question ariscs then, is the OIG conducting this investigaton in an
attempt to collect information and evidence relating to the allegations made in the qul
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tam actien? Ethntiathcme,weheﬁevethatispatmﬂyﬂlcgal,andwemenﬁued
at this point o know cxactly whe authorized this investigation, snd under what auth-
ority. In addidon, we ask why is it taking so long end why is the government allowing
it to take 50 long? .

ltimpwdﬂcwbdim.busadanmemeagasmmmtshammplﬁnt
dixected entirely at other parties, that justification cxists for a two and a half ycar in-
vestigation, which has cost Hamilton millions of dollars in actual costs and tens of
milliozs of dollars in lost shareholders’ equity and opportunity costs. Hundreds of
thousands of decuments have been produced, many witnesses have been questioned
by the OIG and the FBl, yt no conclusions or ircommendations, or ¢ven bazic
information, has heen turned over to the U.S, Attomneys’ Office. While initially we
didn't understand why the OIG 30 sinpularly pursued Hemilton with such a veg-
geance, we now believe that we do. LT ] - .

We have serious reason to suspect that the HUD IG, Susan Gaffney, is direct.
ingapu'wnalvmdetta.thcgualofwhichishodcahoyﬂamﬂmmdthercpnmﬁona
- and economic well being of its former employees. The best evidence of this {5 her
handling of an OIG andit which we reference as the “Denver audit™. In the regular
course of conducting the loan sales, an OIG audit of the sales was o be conducted.
Becauseo[ﬂwcloumoda&onoﬂthuhh:gtonOIG.oﬂieewid::hem eales, the
Dmverﬁddoﬁaéwdsaskedmdothemdit,toawldthnphtmﬁalda'ﬁimdly’
audit being conducted. chcﬁmhnwm.thuSuéanGaﬂheympauonnﬂy
mspmm‘bkforhaﬁngthenmmditbudcd.mcdscbbmuthemdi:mm
. favarable to.Hamilton, a-conclusion-that-Susan -Gallney-did-not-want: to-hear: - We

hmmnbbdimthntMs.Hethmn,mdtheinmdgnmnuﬁmdmwk
ﬁthheronthisparﬁaﬂarﬂtﬁcr.dmdymmﬂmmddiedmdopmano{thcnm
audi 1 ale_purpose.of having.the audit.done oug-of -the-Depver-

= ;.J.' oty
.

SR UL, SV _taRgn _1O6, =05 . .
-office was 10 aveid coloration by the D.C. office. We have reason to believe that, at the

_personal dircction of Susan Gafiney, the Denver audit was shut dds

posesover-thHe-obisetd ol e Taee AdUChHAF the audi

p cven though Ms. Gaffney mﬂy ncd Catherine Austin Fitts
(Hamilton’s President and CEQ) that the Denver audit would not be withheld, because
to do so “would be unethical®,

We also think we Jnow why Ma, Gafiney has followed this contemptible course.
Hamilton and its successer, with the information and knowledpe they developed,
mdinthcwofboth&via-ndtheominthd:quwrormmcy. Hamilton was
hahmm@h&edcﬂopmt,mmmtmdavaﬂghtdme}wnbanmk
programs, which igvelved over $9 billion worth of sales at a known savings of over $2
biltion 20 the U.S. taxpayers, and Ms. Fitts was the driving force behind the disclosure
end performance-based policics that favored taxpayers and communities, but were
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affensive to traditional “players” worlting for HUD, Thus what was at stake here, to
both Ervin and the OIG, was t¢ make sure that no more loan sales take place. Ervin
managed HUD properties, that’s where he made most of his money. I HUD sclls of
its propertica, there’s nothing for Ervin to manage and he deesn’t make any moncy.
With the advent of these lawsuits and the QIG's investigation, the HUD loan sale pro-
ccsa essentially canc to & halt.  As funds were transfarcd away from loan sales,
almost idendcal corresponding funds were provided to the OIG to expand ita power
and to beef-up its enforcoment procecdings, Obvioualy, if HUD has no properties,
‘then the HUD OIG has no authority for its enforcement eofforts at whar are now
privatcly-held properties. The OlG néeda the government to maintain contrel over the
housing to enable it to obtain bigger budgets and mare power.

In aur view, this explains why the OIG would so viciously pursuc Hamilton.

We respectfully request that you immediately investigate these concerns, - We axle that -

You consider the following matters as well.

The OIG has had, for ycars now, hundreds of thousands of pages of documents
relating to the loan sales, produced by Hamilton, HUD, and ather parties, Well over a
Year ago, the QIG interviewed ascveral people who were involved with or had knowledge
of Hamilton's work with HUD. Throughont the course of Hamilten's document pro-
duction, the 0IG had the henefit of meeting with former Hamilton employess, who
described exactly the pature of Bamilton's docurnent keecping and what was being
produced to the government, The OIG has had the bénefit of hoth the document pro-
duction and deposition dizcavery taken by Ervin's lawyers in the Bivens cage. The
0QIG has_hed access.to-Homilton's finansial-records,-and-has-subpoenacd- Ma.-Fitts®
personal bank accounts, cven those which did not come into existence until long after

_Fhmﬂtun’sworkmmHUDhadbmwmnmd. _'l'heOIGhnsevenhnmnsedddedy

pocnmforrmrdaofnfamﬂymcdfamhouuthatdommtwmhavcmplﬂn

. indesr Rlwxbing.

We would like to know just what governmental purposcwa.s gerved by these
actions, or for that matter any of this unending and seemingly unfocused investiga-
tion? What benefits are being provided to the txpayers for an investigation that is no
closer to reaching any conclusions than it was nearly three years idgo when the
investigation began, and which has taken nearly three tmes as long as it took to in-
veatigate, litigate (through scveral trips to the Court of Appeals and Supreme Court),
impeach and try the President af the United Starec? I suggest to you thar the OIG haa
reached no conclusions for two reasoas: first, because there's only onc that can be
reached, but cne that ia very embarrassing to the OIG, Le, nothing wrong or illegal
ook place, certainly as regatds to Hamiltonr or any of its ctaployess. Second. there
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" Was necver any intent to reach sny useful conclusions, but only to dscmy Hamilton
far purely seif-serving reascns.

We are aleo miindful of the fact that the OIG is investigating the optimization
iasucrdaﬁngmwminhm:aluhxwhichﬂamﬂtonmcdumadﬁsormﬂun.
We underatand that the 0IG has reviewed documents from Lucent Technalogies, the
creator of the optimizadon program, and has spoken with cmployees - of Lucent Tech-
nolegies. If the OIG has taken the time to understand and measter the optimizaton
issue, and has looked at the information relating to its ugc in the loan sales, the OIG
wust now know .that there was no wrongdoing or illegality involved on the part of
Hamilton or any of its employees. The entire optimization issuc was brought to the

acntion of HUD by Haxmiltoal It is astounding that by bringing forth an jssue that -

would never have been discovered except by its ewn due diligence, andwh.ichatm?st

- indicates a potential error that at most could have resulted in an economic correction.

representing a tiny fraction of the overall value of the loan sales, Hamilton has been
driven cut of businesa and its former ctaployces have been denied access to the mar-
ketplace, at great cost.  All this because the QIG cannot competently and honestly
conclude what should have been a rather stuaightforward investigation. This ix high-
lighted by the fact that Ms. Gaffney refuses to provide Hamilton access to the Denver
auditwhichshelmmapcakstawmhlyofﬂammm’aacﬁomwgudingtbem
sales. The OIG's behavior is nothing short of sutrageous, and we believe this iz but
further proof of the true intene of ity “investigation™

Ironically, thc loan sales themselves were initiated in response to an OIG audit

_ report which claimed thar HUD's haolding of the mortgages at ismue waa 2 “material
in ite opcrations”. It waa this report thax provided the basis for the OIG's

hwdmmmmthmmmaf@lm_aa{mumw@&ﬂg

-place _and:doacm EINCOL W he reason wh mach;

o st biliih LaWO4 ILVOIVOITICOL WA 100G et iR e e S
to Denver, As part of the audit, members of the Denver OIG audit team actually eat in

am s - el Hd Eoerion

one bidder, particularly with the use of the optimization model and where there s
Opca acoess to all loan information to all interested and qualified biddas. Surely the
govcmmmts.hauldhmrebeeuablcloomﬁrmﬂmﬁ:dingsbynow.yettheinv\csti-
gation continues. Hamilton is entled to kmow why.

We arc also very concerned about the tie-in between the withholding of
Mton‘sneaﬂyﬂnﬁﬂionpluatmowcdbyﬂun,andtheinvuﬁgaﬁm. Hamilton
was asyurcd some time ago that the $1.5 million withheld from it was not tied to the
investigation. We dont believe that.  For one thing, the juetification advanced by
- HUD for withholding Hamilton's moncy is that it is a sct-off for a purported $3.8 mil-
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lion loss resalting from the optimization issue, the samc optigmizatjon issuc which is
the subject of the investigation,

In yet ancther irony, in their angwers to Ervin's requests for admissions filed in
the Bivens action, the HUD defendants deny those of Ervin's assertions thar attempt
ta involve Hamilton in any wrongdeing. Indeed, the government appears 10 be taking
positions in that case that contradiet the positions it is taking régarding the invest-
gation of Hamilton.

In addition. the timing of the OlG's third subpoena (issued in October of 1997),
which specifically sought information relating to the loan sales and the optimization
issue, ia extraordinarily suspicious, as it was served only onc wock after HUD dever- -
mined to terminate Hamilton's contracts, refused to pay the monies owed to Hamiltan,
and made a claim for $3.8 million against Hemilton. - Our saspidon ia heightened by -
the fact that Hamilton had reported the cptimization issue to HUD nearly cue year
previously, in Docamber of 1996, and by the fact that the cxistence of the subpocna,
had tec have been leaked to the press, since it waa reparted in the newspaper before it
waa served on Hemilton.

This tics-in with our concern about the length of time it is taking for the gov-
ernment to take any action on the qui tam case. Bys:amtc.onecaquimhmbm
filed by a private paxty, the government han 60 days within which to either accept the
case for handiing by the government or allow the private party to proceed on its own.
The fact that the government has continued to roll over the 60-day decision-moaking
- . period. for.neasly. threc yoara now,. gives. gise to our-suspicion-that the-OIQ is dither

. warking cloeely with Ecvin’s lawyers in the development of information through the

B«mnscaae.orfhntthcgwumenhladunganymppomngmdmo:mwhmhm

- _altcr nwly three :hc gnvcrnmmt lmowamm -
Ta date, the OIG’s investigadon has achieved the following dismal results:

- Many of the experienced ond highly-dedicated prafessionals in the
Office of Housing/FHA have lcft HUD in fuatration, and several
bave been foroed to retain legal counsel perscaally to fend off un- -
justified charges of contracting abuse, mismanapement and other
illegal activities,

- HUD’s loan salcs program, which had saved the U.S. taxpayers in
excess of $2.1 billion in credit subsidy savings, has been sus-
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pended indefinitely, leaving a large trventory of loans secured by
tent subsidized properties to be worked out by state housing
finance auchorities, depriving the taxpayers of hundreds of mil-
lions of dollars more in credit subsidy savings.

» The Ansncial advisors in the Office of Housing that had a grazp of
the complex FHA portfolio problems and how they could be
resolved consistent with HUD's mission to serve communities,
residents and taxpayars have had their contracts with HUD termi-
nated. One of them, Hamilton Securitics, once a thriving, cutting-

- cdge business employing 40 extremely talented professionals, has .
essendally been put gut of busincss, a3 a result of a two and a .
half year campaign of leaks of false information to the press and L
Congresaional staff, the wrongful withholding of neayly $2 million
of funds frem Hamilton, and the nearly $2 million cxpended by
Hamilton to respend to the unfocused and repetitive demands of
the OlG in pursuing its subpoenae, all of which have di
the full value of sharcholders’ equity. As a resulr, Hamilton has
lost tens of millions of dollars of sharchalders' equity and oppar-
tunity costs in loat business revenue,

. As a result of the QIG's unjustified destruction of Hamilton and
the falae allegations made agamat it, Hamiltons former employecs
have been deprived access to the mdrketplace for many of the
loss of milliona-amd millions of
security for thair families.

" Leghlative support for introducig competiGion into management
savicing and own ‘potﬂUD_guppqrﬁ;d _' and FHA

4 a4 PO <Ly ORI =T Py

stration pru'. which favars the owners managers of
assisted-housing projects and state HFAs, has been extended.

This iy hardly an enviable achicvement, although I'm sure the OIG takes solace
in the fact that its own budget, through cnforcement roundups in public housing
developonenits and asset forfeitures to be used as cash acquisitions for the OIQ, has
been incressed. Surely this is not a result that those who believe in honest govern~

" ment would be proud of, and it cannoet be said that the millions of doltacs spent on |

this investigation by the government have been werthwhile.,
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The govmcnt‘s actions have been o insppropriate that, as 1 noted earlier,
we have even tonsidered whether or nt Hamilton {s the true target of any investiga-
tien, for surcly within nearly three years’ time someone of competence and integrity,
with the taxpayers hest Interests in mind, heading such an investigaton would have
mnhedsomcqrpeofcondunnu. Certainly, the fact that Mr. Van Hom insists on
hiding behind “in camera” jusdfications demonstrates this pogsibility, as well ag indi-
cates that the government has no case, no evidence, and no justificadon for its can-
tinued actions. Good investigators and prosecutors who know they have a case do not
fear sharing that with targets. We can only conclude that any allegations Mr. Van
Horn has contrived to the Court are without merit, ar least as far ns Hamilton is con-
cerned. If there is another trget, there's no justification for the continued harass-
ment of Hamilten. [t is ncither moral nor legal w datray Hamilton just to get to

another party

Fina.lly whn:comdcranunhns been gwen, and hywhom. of the cﬂcctathat
the government's action has had on Hamilton and its former employees? Surely at
mmmmommmmmmmmeﬁknmmthenu-
zenn involved muat be considered, that the necdless toll taken by this i mvemganon

aﬂmforo&mptnmbmtrom thoscrcsponublc(orthetypeofharmt.ha.thubc&.ﬂm
Haxilton and its formoer employees, and we are now investigating the means to pur-

sue thaee remedica.
Hamilton and its former emplayees, over wham the government has held the

W thé status of this investigation. They ar¢ endtled to know why the government
won't relca:e :nformaum famhle to r.hun, and rhcy e cnntled to know who ts

matter. We:mndrmdytormdamtcvcmammwnccd:d andwinglndly
BnNEwCT any quesdons you may have.

Veary truly yours,

Michael J. McManus
MJM/gw

.
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¢ Mr. Thomas J. Pickard .
' Assistant Direcror
' Federal Bureau of Investigation

! Ma, Sylvia Matthcvea
‘ Acting Deputy Director for Management.
Oﬂiee of Management & Budget

The Honorable Juae Gibbs Brown
. Inspector General ~ PCIE
Department of Health & Human Services

The Honorable Robert H. Hast -
hctmgm:tant CmnPknller Genersl i e E R

The Honorable Dan Burton
Chairman, Government Reform Comrmittec
. United Statea Copgress T e PP
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Former Bush Assistant Secretary for IUD Reveuls "Ethnic Cleansing

. Connected to CJA Drug Dealing in Los Angeles

Government Spends Millions in Campaign to Silence Former Wall Street Basiker, Cover Up Conncetions to Dark Allixpce
Stories & CIA Inspector General Report on Drug Trafficking

Special w From The Witderness,
May 1999
by
™ “Catherine Austin Fitts

§ wax ter yoars old when the combined activn of HU howsng invesunanr and heroin trafficking deviroyed my West Phitadelphia neighborhioad.

The cambined reel estate and drug play destroyed the equity in our komes and businessey. Many of us lefl. Those wha stayed were embroiled in

the lnervasiug stress of what happens as neighborhoods deteriarate inte crime and decay. | decided that § would learn how nwney worked, | was
= - 100 young tu andersiand fully how tlie.combination of HUD investmen! and drugs could niove control und wwiership front the many people wiho

lived it a coummunity 1o a few people who lived outside the conununity. - C.AF, ** =2

U'm an investment banker. In the eightics | was a4 Munaging Dircctor and member of the Baard of Dircetors at the Wall Strect investment bank

Dillgn, Read & Co,; Ine, | manuged the firm's lurge municipal and government clients. My projecty included the (nancing_ of billions of dollars off
- == Improvementsin New York Clty s subway, bus ard cammuler ral systems. | also organized the financing for hundreds of millions in renovations

to the infrustructures of New York and New Jersey. | regulurly hundled hundreds of millions of doilars in ransactions.

I uiso helped to make tens of millions of dollars in profits for my firm and [ raised tens of thousands of dollars for the George Bush Presidential
campaiyn in 1988, Nicholax Beudy, who became George Bush's ‘Treasury Secretary, had been my puriner and boss at Dillon Read.

[ was u Wall Sircet insider and a political insider - or o 1 thought, | was successful at Dillon Read because 1 created new investment models that
belped o ' 4 prolit. 1 thought Zgulsidc the box.” When Iran-Contra came and went | wus oblivious, Lhad no jdea ahout.e.
=== {HE A, ' ertoday Tum convinced thut the illcgal drug trade, the enormous cheap capital it gentrates, and the CIA's
r the profits of that trade is u dominunt factor in the cconomy of this country. It is a factar, which is destroying the

) 0 .

ydu RN S ruLe.

Sigit §1 {1 » 1] H TN ol q

My cvelution come slowly. In 1989 | was numcd Assistant Scerctary of Housing-FHA Commissioner under Housing and Urbun Development
Scerclury Juck Kemp. | managed $300 billion of mortgage insurance, mortgages and propertics of the Federal Housing Administrution and, as
Commissioner. | adviscd the Sceretary on another $1 wriftigh of mortgagce financing. | was fired by Jack Kemp in late 1990 because ! would not
8o ulong with the qucstionable political practices, which secrn to be built into HUD's machincry and purpose. But still | did not sew the biguer
picture.

In 1990, after leaving HUD, I swricd my own investment company, The Hamilton Securitics Group, and | devised new and ercatlve ways to save
tuxpaycrs billions of dellars. In 1993, Humilton sccurcd contracts with HUD through Secrctury Henry Cisncros. Hamilton saved taxpayers
billions of dollars by taking defautted HUD housing mortgages, repackaging them and auctioning them on the private market. Hamilton bepun
putting wealth back into inner city prajects by hiring women living in HUD housing and teaching them how to usc computers to bulld data bases
on huw moncy works in 63,000 neighbortioods throughout America. Hamilton started a data processing company with these women inu HUD
project (Rdycwood Temacc) in Washington. The women wha livid there camed stock in the company. The compuny mude money und proved the
concept of whut on-line aceess in communities could do o build jobs and businesscs. We used the suceess of that elfon to persuade HUD 10 fund
computer learning eenters in olher housing prajects. Homilton was extremely successful. We made mitlions and we saved the governmenl
billions. :

s

Fulfilling my childhood drecam, Hamilton ulso ¢reated new sofiware and moncy management tools, which were, for (he first time ever, able to
map down to the neighborhood, exactly how [HUD and other (ederal moncy worked, who protited when louns dufuulted, and how moncy came
o or lelt o community. For example, we were oflen able I sce where HUD was spending S100-250,000 per unit on apartment buildings when
there wis

sinple fumily housing availuble within walking distunce for $25-50.000,

Secretary Cisneros hud been extremcly supportive of our work. We had unresleicied access to rich quontities of government financial dita thut
was supposedly public but hard {0 understund. We were transfating that into uscuble information so that people In any community eould see huw
the moncy flowed through their neighborhood, We helped HUD get increasing arnounts of duta up on its web site. An unforeseen side offect for
(he women at Edgewood, and for 11zmilion, was that by  secing clearly haw the clean money worked, we also began to sec how the dirty money

hilp:/fwww.micresoft.com/mep/certstep/mesein.him
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worked.
As un investor for more thun twenty yoars, 1 believed that it was actually more profiuble for people to own their own neithborhoods and

busincsscs and to know cxuctly how the money worked. The MONEY MAPS we made were so simplo to understund that they looked like comic
books.

As it turns oul wemapped a prear deal more thun we knew.

In 1996, as reporter Gury Webb was busy writing « scrics of storics connecting CIA und the Contras to the eruck cocuine cpidemic 1n Los
Angcles, [ was busy using the moncy maps in a way that would help people move people from government subsidics to home ownership und
entreprencurship.

Twas ulso udvocating that U.S. povernment investment in communitics should be subject Lo the sume public disclosure rules that privaic
companies arc obligated 1o follaw under the Sceuritles and Exchunge Commission Rules. IF you ure 4 sharcholder in a compaay, thal company is
using your thoncy, The law roquites (hat they usc your maney lagally und that they do their best 1 protecl your moncy and make you more. To
carn maoney, and to do so in a fair, honest and competitive way, federat und stutc laws rcquire compaaies (6 report performance and key
transactions 10 you, the sharcholder. Every citizen is a sharchelder In the government. [F governments worked fike they requite corporations 1o
work, they would be required to report 1o you, in (he sunshine, cxactly how the money was working, in your neighborhoad, wnd you could elthor
upprove - or disupprove of the fairess and eMectivencss of thut, based upan your understanding of your own needs. That is very threatening to
those who hava used agencies like HUD as o trough 1o pay viT palitical eromies. :

‘on Aﬁ};ﬁﬁ 1, 1996, [ gave the keynotc address ut o Neighborhood Netwerks conference in Boston, Massuchusctts to 500 OWNErS, nunaper une)
tenants in privaic HUD housing. As parl of the speech | showed a slide of onc of our moncy maps of Loy Angeles (Map on Page 5). As put the
slide up ! mude the following statement: .

" On¢ of e praducis that hax been most succesyful Jor the first data servicing silex, Fdgewood Technology Services, hax been *geo-coding® _
databaxes and mupping. { wanted 10 shaw you this wap; it’s up on the World Wide Web, This is o map of Los Angeles. Can-anyone fisnre out
where south contral LA is from looking at where the HUD properties are ont this mup? This is the same thing as the Wushington DCmap 1
showed varlior. The little red dots are single Jamily properties that were fingneed by (nerw) defeedreg HUD-held morteazes, Thix map way peg-
voded and designed und programued hy a woman who, four months hefore, had been on unesployment compensation und is a tenant in 1HUD
housin:” ’ : G

IV you compuro this mup with the fact that Fecewuy Ricky Ross - the erack cocaiae hingpin described in Gary Webl's Durk

: etrepresemtsa HUD-moreap ey w adefaulted FHA Joan and where somehody
else bought (he property for peanies.on the dolar, Most of thase touns defiulted bs the crack cacalne epidemic ravaged Los Angeles. The
Lixpayers bear the costs of not anly the defaulied mortgages, but alsa deterivration in property value, the ¢rime, und ultimacely the depopulation
due ta very gxpensive prison warchousing und welfurc. :

Alliauce was known for buying up real cstare along the IHarbor Preewuy and sclling drugs thrauihout this cxact arca - the mathematicsl

Exuctly who bought und (rwded in propertes throuphout this arca should be the subject o congressional hearings loaking into corrupt HUD
pructiccs from the period and continuing to this day. I suspect that many of the same players connceled to the Savings and Loan seunduly, who
have ulso been tied to Jran-Canira and CIA's drugs will surfuce yel again, Demagraphically it is also cusy 1o scc now that the racial composition
of South Centrul has changed eadicelly und that African-Americans have been geographically and politicully Fragmented as, t belleve, an intended
result. Their political power has beer wiukened.

Just duys after showiny this first map, | recelved a subpoena lrom the Office of the Inspector Generul of HUD asking for extensive date and
records from Hamilton. Suddenly, the loan sales and Hamilton were under investigation. The HUD [G's actions were doubly surprising given
their intimte involvement in and positive feedback about the loan sulcs program and becauss 3 HUD OIG audit team had just Gnished un gudit
ol the loan sales program and hud informed our project manuger and HUD that our perfermance wus excellent and there were no problems

whalsoever, - -

At the same time, we ot calls from a team of reporters from US News & World Report. They had been assured "at the highest levels” of the
HUD nspeetor General's olfice that we were guilty of criminal action and that I and would soon be indicted, The recent favorable audit
disappearcd, Investigators sturted doing interviews where they did morc secd planting thun information gathering.

hetp:/iwwwy. microsoft.com/mep/certsiep/mescin.htm
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The "uvestigators™ at 1UD stared sugpesting Lo reporiers that bid rigging hud occurred in the loan sales. This was just after members of the
HUD IG audit team had actually sat in on one sale, and conciuded that bid rigging was impossiblc, They had also concluded thar there was no
way that “rigging” could have taken place because in s scaled-bid auction, you cannot favor onc bidder when all bidders have acecss to the same
information. That audit report was suppressed while the G investigutors pushed the cxuct opposite notion to reporters,

On August 10, Bob Dole announced Juck Kemp as kis running matc. Meantime, the Republican appropriations commitles, chaired by Republicun
Congressman Jerry Lewis of Sun Bernurdino, gave Susan Gafiney, the HUD IG a large appropriations Increase far her program Operation Safo
FHome, which Lurgeied-bluck communities for visible media "wag-the-dog® roundups of drug oftonders. At the same time, our model for computer
lcarning and data processing by people whe had a stake in the compuny thut did the work was adopted by Unicorp. Unicorp is the Department of
Justice private business that markets prison labor to federal ugencics.

Suddenly. the black peopic who werc apparcatly not smart enough to do database and software develapment ncar their children and parents were
more thun compelent cnough ta do it in prison. The prison nvestinent boom was taking oft| tucled by

now and lohger mandated sentences. We at Hamilton fell like we were walking around with a big bullscyc on our back because we wanted the
communiutics of America to knaw what we knew, which was how Lo muke maps that tracked the money Mow in their own home towns.

1 was not the only onc dealing with Inspector General inquirics. The HUD officials working with me were also inundated with an investigation
marked by leaks and diety lactics. The former Depuly Assistant Seeretury for Mullifamily st HUD, Helen Dunlup, was onc of the people turgeted.
She was from Californiu and had previously run the California Housing Partnership. She had Jots of experience in rea] eslate und community
developmene in Los Angeles. Gary Squier, the Housing Cofnmissioner of LA, o loan fram Los Angeles, who wis not involved in morguge
sales with Hamilton, nonctheless found himself dealing with simitar probes from the HUD OIG. He was later to be turned down Tor a positinn by
the White Housc despite impeccable credentials. No one could figure out why.

http:fwww.miceesofl.convmep/eerislep/mesein,htm
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Suddcnly | was persuna non gruta to long time friends and business relativns in und around the government. I believe the feak campuign was fur
more sophisticuted thaa something the HUD Inspector General could or wauld do on her own, It appeared that major cconomic and political
powers hod ordcred that Humilton by destroyed, More importantly, they wanted the evidence of what we knew - the maps - destroyed. Tha iy
ulse why, 10 this day, we believe the Federal goverament hus destroyed many., but not all, of aur toals and dutubuses,

We didn't reatize it al (he time, but | am new convinced that in the summer of 1996, our saftwarc and mapping techniques uncovered evidence of
cthnic cleansing on Los Angeles. Humilton's map revealed that one of the most significant cffcets of the crack cocalne epidemic was that black
homcowners, faced with paymenls on unlivable and unscllable properties, simply defuulted und fled the city 1o get away from the shootings und
the drugs. Thesc praperties: industrial, residential and commerciat were scooped up fie pennics on the doflar, Wouldn't it be fascinating ta knaw

who bought the propertics and how much money has been made on them slnce?

Thanks to people like Gary Webb, Peter Dale Scott {Cocatne Politics), Alcx Cockbum (Whiteout), Mike Ruppert, brave DEA Agents like
Celerino Custillo - und now to the CIA's own reports - we can prove that the CLA knew full weil what it was dving. And, as is his purticular gifc,
Mike Ruppert, who gives us permission to see the obvious, hus estublished that blacks were targeted by CIA und that the peaple who control our
intelligence agencics ure the same ones whe contro! our economy and Wall Stecct, Mike has taken grear pains to document these things in
previous issues of Fram The Wilderness.,

ETHNIC CLEANSING IN LOS ANGELES

Ethnic cleansing is a bit {rickicr in South Central Los Angeles than it is in South Central Europo, It is essential in a "democruey” to huve people

do-it in o way that makes it touk Tike they're *daing it” to themselves: You nied i socially indiced sdicide.

So how do you get peaple to comeit suicide? You muke it very attractive for their children 10 make money deing samcthing illegal.

7 Thén youTirrest Them for it in a very visible way (Remember (he baltering rams and armored cars?). You design stories to muke people blame
themselves for whut hos happencd. This is how brandiny works. Pepsi = tastes good, Black people - canse illegal drugs und crime. Support all
this by a nutionul medin owned by defense contractors and other carporate interests, That way the nightly news has lots of moncymaking
incenzives o cover HUDN OIG sponsorcd drug ruids in black communities rather thun doing 4 story on CIA drug trafficking.

.- The most.cfficicntcthnie cleansing isxsel [-linanced-or: better-yet; profitable: Drugs and sitcohiol wre exceHenir tools taward this end, dspeelally
when they are combincd with easy access 16 guns. Sell large umounts of addictive substances to a group of people in an area you want to take
over, then use the cash flow to buy up their homes and commereiul roal cetate for 10 conts on the dollar, without much compctition, while you

=XoucanthenulTord-thedong-holding-perind-required-to-nakey i . 2154 T —

| belicve thut if'the Federul povernment would make citizens' data (und it is our duty) uvailable. instcad of rying to suppress it, it would prove

that tuxpuyers ure lesing moncy Lo fund cthaic cleansing while the people in South Centrul LA are losing their fives. And 1 believe that if was the
cffeetivencss of our maps which threstened to exposc the decper financial agendus of the cighties, | believe our current model, the Solari
Investment Modecl, (www.solarivilluge.com) which | um still developing, may well tie [ran-Contre, The Savings and Loan Scandals and the 1HuUD
scundals of the late 19805 into ane bip cconomic puckage designed to benefir a very few. The way 1o sturl to do this is to look closcly at all the
government investment, credic and rogulations in Los Angeles since 980,

OQur maps suggpest W me and others that the crack cocaine epidemic, ereated by the CIA was, { belicve, just as much a program af ethnic cleunsing
und land grabbing economic wurfare as it was about a bunch of rebels in Ceniral America who were not the equivalent of gur Founding Futhers.
But this kind of cthnic cleansing was hurd to contain and it spread to other racey und classes, It reached the rural and suburban neighborhoods of
pluces like lowa, Ohio and Tennessee. By the cnd of the 1980°s it had reached atl my [riends und relatives who listen to Rush Limbaugh, vated
for George Bush und donated money to Qliver North - not knowing that, according to CIA's awn reports, the netwarks he controlled were the key
1o the supply of drugs flowing to their kids and communitics. As Michael Ventura once wrote, *We all live in the South Bronx now.” White
familiex all across Amcrica were hurt by drugs and viglence und their pocketbooks also got drained, even us the media reinforeed the notion thar
drugs were u biuck problem,

Afer the 1996 election, Secretary Cisneros wus asked to resign from HUD. The choice of Cisneros' suceessor secmed strange and somchow
connccicd to Hamilton's predicament. The Afro-American mayor of Seartle was widely considered to be u shoc-in, After the White House floated
his narme, another investigation by the 11UD OIG into possible misusc of HUD monies in Seattle cuused him to be dropped. Two days later we
were asyured that un Afro-American woman from Los Angeles, Yvonne Braithwaite-Burke, was the President’s leuding candidate, Then
suddenly, she disappeured from the radar sereen and Andrew Cuomo was announced with surprisingly strong bipurtisun supportt for somcone
with such a partisan history.

Cuomo moved into the Secretary’s office at HUD from his then current position as Assislant Scerctary for Community Develepment and
Planning. Rumors started to float around the 11UD networks ubout minoritics and people sympathetic lo minoritics being moved out, Meantime,
the new Sceretury mude it clear that his top priority was enforcement and it appcared that the Seeretary und the OJG were going 1o compete for an
ever-growing budger vis media-worthy enforcemient aetions. So, then came the Urban Fraud Initiative and increascd funding for Operation Safe
Home, turgeting tenunts, reul cstate owners and managers in bluck communitics, At the time, we made no connectian between (hesc uctions and
the promotion ol prison privatization by Viee President Gore's Nationss! Perforumee Revicw. New Federal sentencing ruidelines hefped incroaye
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bluck: inmatcs to :ipproxl‘malcly 50% of b rupidly cxpanding prison population. All {his yi un cxtraordinary cost to mxg;n;crs.

who wore later to withhuld $2 million in payments, became obsessed will) scizing our daa and software. This was saflware we were planning on
givinls nway via the web! The erilical issuc from October 1997 through the following March scemed to be - our knowledge! In October, great
emphiusis wus placed on our returning all of our HUD databases, including thase thut were suppesed 10 be publicly avallable, and certifying (hut
we hid donc so. In the following months, the HUD OIG tried to scize all bf otir documents, including originals, with no basis In law. After
dennh ing physical access to our computers, government employces madc back-ups of our data which, whellier intentiondlly or not. seriously
damaped it. : )

As e audils of Humilton continued, fofcing us to spend hundreds of th::{sands on lcgal fees, Secretary Cuome und the Inspector General's stafT,

And ho one hos yet officiully yccused us of any wrongdoing. We were, ard are to this day, only being Investigated. It is cleur to us that the incent
ufth%cn’mpaign was 10 drive the company into bankruptcy. The leak campuign weninst the company and me has sinee réuched new heighes of
absurdity. As the 11UD IG keeps ussurink the media that that | am guilty §F eriminal violations they now have investigatarx focusing on my sex
flifel Worsc still, HUD G agents recently showed up ot the honio of my 72 yeir uld uncle with a subpocna for records of a fumily owned furm
hause that doesa't cven have indoor plurkbing, implying some kind of fralidulent transuelion. Members of my family have reduced or cul ol
comn unications, fearing they could be largeied (vo. (

At'rcl:}couﬂ buttles andd negotiation, .in March off 1998 HUD insisted thut all of our computers be serubbed. We were not going to be ullowed to
wrunsler our own proprictary daty und thé Federul District Court Judpe, Stanley Sporkin, uppainted a Special Master us trustee Lo manuge all our
digiull ond puper records. lncxplicably, HUD wus quite upsct when they fhund we had tuken our main server with us and not sold il, in spite of
emment's destruction of i files. The HUD investigator made ix clear that we could not keep th ]

: hiny of the kiowledgge™. We cauld-riot cxplain this bizarre positicn and neither conld they: - = 7~

¢ server because - *We were nol allowed to

of thy CIA Inspeclor General’s repert on the Dark Alliunce allegutions en{March 16 of 1998, At the same moment Lhe government was tryfng to

We tifso did nof notice in Februsry when Vice President Al Gore announded thal Seoreiury Cuomo was b(:sldwinﬁ an cmpowémwnl zon¢ and
S30gmillion in tax credils on MaxineWiter's congressional district. Thut|wux just before the March L6 hearing where Muxine Walers

cd brilfiantly aganst CIA in u show thut nabedy watched. We wefe busy, ut the time, moving our computers over 1o our law firm
protett the MONEY MAPS from i seciek of breuk-ins und other hurassment around my horn.

winy Fear of bring sct up in an aéser forfelture case, afler the Depirimicnt of Justice threatened iny assets bénsormlly. dominated our lives
] U VN PSP TIPS RS I . PO :

s RO

ovieral's repo Oif TICEONET 5, Ot HOUT GIiGr HERTy
1 Maxinc Waters' voice suddenly fetl ulmost silenl us BitFClinton -
its contents. [ made cfforts 1o communicate with Muxine Walers in
November and December 1998 about pobsible conncctions between otir and CIA drug dealing bu, aside from an inltial contact, our cally
were ot returned. [FTW placed tetephoie and v-mail requests to both the LA and Woshington offices of Muxine Watees 1o ascertain whether the
$300 Ywiltion tax credit uward in Maureh, 1998 was spomancous or the result of u previously submiited request. As of press lime we have recetved

ot gl e

Hydcjs Comminee started the lmpeuch ment i

il
LALCEEE T S A L O T |

To dute we cstimate that the 1TUD Inspeetor General invostigation tacgetitls my companics and me has cost the Americun taxpayer 335MM, To
dule We have not been suecessiul in gelling the Dopartment of Justice or the HUD OIG to tell us what they are Investiputing or even who s in
chargh of the investigation. The investigition continucs with no end in sitd. W huve multiple lawsuits filed against HUD and are filing mure. We
contifually hear Judge Stanley Sparkin, rule against us with statcments that he disagrees with the luw so we should take it up with Congreys.

I'he company | founded, Hamilton, was liquidated a yeur ugo to pay the bills of the ongoing campaign to discredit us, As  result of the
persecution we have logl more thun onc hundred million dollurs. [ have sold my homc, lost millions of dollary in unpaid HUD contracts, endured
cightden audits, burgluries, physicul hurassient and an unending smeur cidmpaign which has produced not a single complaint or indictment after
almost three yeurs. 1 helieve this is becuuse 1 have the pieces te help pmvc: that what Gary Webb stumbled upon wus ethnic cleunsing=- American
siyle.

My batiam-line? For those of you pushing for testimony on Volume ), let's try another tactic. Let's push for s Congressional and GAD
investigation on how ull the federal investment, eredit and regulution worked in Los Angeles from 1980 1o 1994, Lel’s look a1 how our
gavernment wus used, from CIA to DEA to HUD, to destray and loot qur tummunitics. The key is HUD. Let's look at how Lhe Scetion § owners,
managers and tax partaership benefciarics worked ulong side the drug tralTickers. Let’s Jook for patterns of laan brokering, money laumlering,
vicansing and other relationships bewween real estate, land, prison growth had privatizalion and the kind of investors whe contral ClA and
inelligence networks. Then lecC's look how Lhiy lics in to-campaign fundru‘sing.

The present ecanomit und politicul systcm is not sustainable and must collupse - or change, New investment models in the information uge wil
show us thut inteprity, honesty und win-win investment models, rooted in kommunity und place buscd autonomy are actually more profifable thun
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the: liguidate und destroy models curcently operiting] Like the auto mech
to thd car vwner who needed repairs, "Ybu cun dithd: puy some now - or p: y u lot more luler.” Bul we huve o solve some problems first. Finding
the will to do that is niade easier for mo 4s I recdll thk words of Bishop AXred Owens of the Greuter Mount Calvury lloly Church, *If we can fuce
it. Ged oun fix ic® ‘ : :

Af’tcha lifetime of study, from Whartan {o the ifner Suncta of governchend | believe | huve found the solution Lo u very real corruption which
neither Congress nor Wall Streut presently possisy the ubility to slﬂp.Jll igu new invesiment model, bomn ol the Information Agc, which will suve
both the just and the unjust alike by tutning the turrbnt Industrial Age invbstmient model upside Jown und muking whal was once seere -
uvailgble to all. As the edge of the precigice upproadies and us aur ceOnodvic smuke vals its own il it shouldn't be lony before thuse who hgve

scofled at the truth-tellers recognize that'we are the ones with the maps 1ofleud them out of the jungle.

lari.com.

You cun Icarn more about the Solari invéstment model by visiting wy

Catherine Awstin Fins, 4%, x 0 1978 Graduate of e Wharton School of lusthess|\with un MEBA in F inance, Fromi978 to 1959, at the Wall Street investnent bank
Diftod. Read & Co she serverd i the ¢ ‘orporaie FMinanee, Energy Fiuanee, Mef.r;::err il Aequiisitions and Pablic Finance Departments. From [986-0 Fitee WS o

Muana)zing Divevine vd sy uf the Reurd of Dirvetars, i

From 1 959-98 Fitts served as Asxiviant Secrétary of Housing - Federat Hau:J /4 ixmm'.m‘nnpr at the Dapartment of Housing and Urbaa Davetapment. From
19917 2he serveud e Presideui/CEQ of the Hmnil"lqn Seeuritics Grovp with dggrguse revenues of 850 million, an employee base of 50-aid purifolio strotegy
responsibilitics for $940 bitlion of finanéial desets. )

She Isluow Presideor end CEO of Svluei, lnc.f a Washington consslting firm spccﬂrh':ing in cquity based neighborhood invesiment modely Jor the fformation
Ape ’
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

THE HAMILTON SECURITIES GROUP, et al.. )
)
Plaintiffs, )
v. )
)
)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF )
HOUSING AND URBAN ‘DEVELOPMENT, )
et al. ) :
) R S
Defendants.. - .. ¥ - T
)

AFFIDAVIT OF C. AUSTIN FITTS

City of Washington )
District of Columbia ) ss:

I, C. Austin Fitts, do hereby state the following:

- i CKeround
1. ‘T am the founder of the Hairlilton Securi}ies Group, Inc. i
(“Hamilton™).
T~ T2~ Thé information in this affidavit is based on my personal knowledge
or beliefs.
3. I was Assistant Secretary of Housing/Federal Housing

Commissioner at the Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD ")
from 1989 to 1990, under former HUD.Secretary Jack Kemp.

4, In 1990, I founded Hamilton, a Delaware corporation, with its
principal place of business in Washington, D.C. Hamilton proyides investment‘

banking and other financial advisory services to its clients.




.. substantially. By 1993, HUD. had accumulated a backlog of 2';‘400'mtiltifamilji A S

B. FHA's Provision Of And Problems With Morteace Insurance

5. The Federal Housing Administration (“FHA") provides insurance
for single-family and multifamily residentia} hqusing mortgages. The availability
of this insurance creates more opporturﬁties for low and moderate income people to
rent decent, safe and samtary housing and buy their own hornes

6. Durmg the 1980’s, the number of defaulted FHA loans grew

mortgages and 95,000 single-family mortgages with an aggregate unpaid principal
balance of $11 billion. This inventory was so large that HUD staff had only
enough time and resources to service its most troubled loans. Other loans were

practically neglected, which meant HUD did little to prevent them from becoming

“troubted T

LI SIS R A PRSI SIS s R e o
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%. Becausc of th.lS backlog, the larger uussmn of overseeing HUD’s
$400 billion insured loan portfolio was virtually ignored. HUD’s Inspector
General (“1G”) and FHA's outside auditors both found the huge inventory of past
due mortgages to be a “material weakness” in HUD’s internal controls. HUD
became the only agency to be placed in its entirety on the General Accounting
Office’s “high risk™ list.,

8. HUD implemented 2 loan sale program to deal with problems in its
portfolio. The HUD mortgage loan sale program was expressly approved by
Congress. In response to challenges to HUD's statutory authority to sell mortgage
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loans from its inventory, Congress passed three amendments to Section 203 of the
National Housing Act and then, in the Multifamily Housing Property Disposition
Reform Act of 1994 (Pub L. 102-233, approved April 11, 1994}, Congress
completely rewrote Section 203(k). These pieges of legislation eased the statutory
requirements that HUD had to meet in order .to sell mortgage loans.

9. The program, authorized by Congress, has been critica] to HUD’s

improved management of its defaulted loan problem. Moreover, the loan sale

_program itself was a key element.of a broader effort to-re:invent HUD and create a

new FHA based on the principles of sound financial management.

C Hamilton’s Relationship With HUD
10.  Prior to its relationship with HUD, Hamilton had engaged in

business with other clients. Specifically, these clients included Battery Park City

s _A.nth@ﬂ%ﬂ LJ=la Efptas S AT Y

FOUNAANon, the National Housing ﬁarmership, the Maryland Department of
Housing and Community Development, and others. As Hamilton's business with
HUD increased, its business with other pa‘ying clients tapered off until, by the start
of Hamilton's crosscutting services contract with HUD in 1996, Hamilton had
dropped all other paying business clients who had any dealings with HUD or
related assets and liabilities so that Hamilton could serve as HUD's crosscutting
financial advisor without creating potential conflicts of interest.

11.  In February 1993, HUD issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”)
seeking a financial advisor to assist it in the sale of single-family and multifamily
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mortgages, as well as to provide other housing advisory services. The scope of the
REP anticipated the future sale or ret‘manciﬁg of HUD-held mortgages. Hamilton
submitted a bid for this contract.

12. After an eight-month competitive process, Hamilton won the
procurement and signed a contract with HUD on September 30, 1993. The
contract initially authorized up to $5 million in services over a four-year period.

13.  Hamilton has served as HUD’s financial advisor since the inception

L —_'_—-';?__O-f-_HUD_?_:s:zloan._salé-.prog'rarﬁ'iih"71993'5:—' “With the supportof Hamilton and other =~~~ = -

financial advisors, HUD has successfully conducted 19 loan sales, disposed of
more than 115,000 mortgages, ar‘lcl_rt_:ollqr_:t__;d_$§..5 billion in proceeds. This
program has saved the U.S. Government $2.1 billion in avoided costs, as

calculated on a “credit reform” basis, which represents a savings of $21 for every

fiousenold. HUD has boasted to Congress and the. mcdla about the

“success of this prooram and the Clinton Administration has pointed to the program
as one of its major accomplishments.

14. From the outset, HUD, with Hamilton’s support, involved many
HUD divisions as well as outside agencies, including the Department of the
Treasury, in the design and implementation of the loan sale program. They also
made sure that HUD’s own Office of Inspector General (*0OIG™), Office of the
Chief Financial Officer and Office of General Counsel (“OGC™) al had significant
input and on-going involvement in the program. The Office of Management and
Budget ("OMB") reviewed and approved cost savings estimates before and after.
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each sale. Congress, too, was involved from the beginning and remained a
participant in the mortgage sale effort - including the passage of 1994 legislation
authorizing the program. Proposed rules for the sales were published regularly in
the Federal Register. Both HUD’s OIG and OGC reviewed the bid process, sales
designs aﬁd internal controls and were regularly provided with written
descriptions.

15. At no time during the sales design or implementation process did

'-T'Hanulton receive negatlve feedback complamt.s q&eétlens or contract mqulnes

from any of these participants. In fact, Hamilton received numerous compliments
and commendations from HUD, OMB and other participants due to its work in'this
program. Indeed, the loan sale program itself, with Hamilton’s advisory role,

received a Hamimer Award gwen by Vice Presxdent Gore as a model for mproved
‘ o i e S T e L

i o
erﬁmency and re-englneerlng of govemment programs

16.  The following chart summarizes Hamiltpn’s assignments for HUD
during the period 1993 to 1997 demonstrating HUD’s continued confidence and
trust in Hamilton’s abilities.

SUMMARY OF HAMILTON'S ASSIGNMENTS FOR HUD: 1993 - 1997

Contract/Prime Assignment Time Task

Frame Order
HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor on sale of 1993 001

Section 221(g)(4) muliti-
family mortgages

HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor on sale of | 1993-1994 002
Section 221(g)(4) single
family mortgages
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Contract/Prime Assignment Time Task
_ Frame Order
HC-18161/Hamilton Development of multifamily | 1993-1994 003
disposition plan, called the
MAP
HC-18161/Hamilton Design/implementation of 1995-1996 004
pilot sales of subsidized
mortgages to state housing
finance agencies. Analysis of
the Section 8 portfolio and
consulting on policy
alternatives '
HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor and due 1994-1995 005
diligence support on sale of
multifamily mortgages in the
southeast
HC-18161/Hamilton Support for FNMA 1994-1996 006
: reassignment; design of sales;
marketing
HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor on sale of 1995-1996 007
multifamily mortgages in the
West and South
HC-18161/Hamilton Disposition analysis of the 1995 008
-~ -~ |Section 530 premiums o N
_{HC-18161/Hamilton . - | Financial advisorontwe— —.1995-1996
) single family sales
HC-18161/Hamilton Support for building 1995 010
relationships between FHA
and rating agencies
HC-18410/Williams Design/implementation of the 1995-1996 004
Adley (Hamilton as first structured transaction of
subcontractor) partially subsidized
- multifamily mortgages
HC-18410/Williams Financial advisor for sale of 1995 005
Adley (Hamilton as performing multifamily
subcontractor) mortgages
HC-18410/Williams Consulting on credit reform 1995 006
Adley (Hamilton as issues and exploration of
subcontractor) value of devloping template
models to estimate the credit
subsidy of sales
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Adley (Hamilton as
subcontractor)

issues and exploration of
value of devloping template
models to estimate the credit
subsidy of sales

Contract/Prime Assignment Time
Frame
HC-18161/Hamilton Development of multifamily | 1993-1994
disposition plan, called the
MAP
HC-18161/Hamilton Design/implementation of 1995-1996
pilot sales of subsidized
mortgages to state housing
finance agencies. Analysis of
the Section 8 portfolio and
consulting on policy
. alternatives
HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor and due 1994-1995
diligence support on sale of
multifamily mortgages in the
southeast
HC-18161/Hamilton Support for FNMA 1994-1996
reassignment; design of sales;
marketing
HC-18161/Hamilton Financial advisor on sale of 1995-1996
' multifamily mortgages in the
West and South _
HC-18161/Hamilton Disposition analysis of the 1995
N O - -t-Seetion 530 premijums | 7 P
HC-1816]1/Hamilton.... ... | Financial advisor 9 wo-———|-1095-1096 -3¢
e single family sales
HC-18161/Hamilton Support for building 1995
' relationships between FHA
and rating agencies
HC-18410/Williams Design/implementation of the | 1995-1996
Adley (Hamilton as first structured transaction of
subcontractor) partially subsidized )
multifamily mortgages
HC-18410/Williams Financial advisor for sale of 1995
Adley (Hamilton as performing multifamily
subcontractor) mortgages
HC-18410/Williams Consulting on credit reform 1995
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Contract/Prime Assignment Time Task
' Frame Order
HC-18410/Williarns Consulting for the financial 1995 009
Adley (Hamilton as advisor on the sale of Title [
subcontractor) loans
HC-18437/Price Multifamily product market, 1996 002
Waterhouse pricing and design support
(Hamilton subcontractor)
HC-16986/Coopers & Services and support in 1995 009
Lybrand (Hamilton development a computer-
" subcontractor) based model to evaluate
HUD's portfolio
HC-16986/Coopers & FHA strategic planning 1994 010
Lybrand (Hamilton
subcontractor)
.| HC-18505/Hamilton Crosscutting financial 1996-1997 001
advisory services on $400
billion portfolio and
mortgage sales

D. The Crosscuttine Advisory Contract

17.  With respect to HC-18505, the “crosscutting” services contract,

- Hamilion was to proyide HUD with financial-advisory services-with respect-to-the: -

management, investment, and sales associated with HITJD'S $400 billion portfolio
for the period 1996 to 1997. See Exhibit A (Contract and Task Order). In this
crosscutting role, Hamilton helped HUD ;oordinate the work of up to 17 different
contractors, including pr.her financial advisors, du’e-diligence contractors, multiple
law firms, and other HUD consultants; shared the experience and technology
gained from all other previous loan sales in which they served as consultants: and

insured consistency in policies and protocols
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18.  As part of this work, Hamilton worked in several vital areas for
HUD. These included mortgage sales, budgetary/credit subsidy support, strategic
communications, portfolio strategy, and, other portfolio-related work, including
new product design and analysis and staff development.
19. For its work on this assignment, Hamilton was to be paid $10.4
million per year, over a two-year period. Of this amount, Hamilton paid a
.si gnificant portion to its many sub-contractors. This contract, in the period
involved, amounted to almost ali of Hainjlton's paid work and income. To service
this contract, Hamilton assigned a substantial amount of its non-administrative staff
and a 'inajority of all of its staff. In addition, Hamilton hired numerous contractors
and outside companies, including Edgewood Technology Services, Global Business
Network, Horizon Consultants, KFS, Ltd., Lucent Technologies/ Belt

R - Laboratorijes, MelaNet/New Perspective Technologies, Ravitch, Rice and

Cmm Tmrmmammmm g ek s s s e, e

e OBy, 2nd Others. )
20.  To perform its work for HUD, Hamilton staffed their company and
forewent other types of work, ihcluding potential broker-dealer and investrent
advisory operations. Indeed, the crosscutting contract made it extremely difficult
for Hamilton to work for other private clients outside of other Federal and other
government agencies, due to the need for Hamilton to avoid potential conflicts of

interest. This requirement, plus the later adverse publicity caused by HUD, made it

impossible for Hamilton to work for another Federal and other government agency
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The RTC liquidations were winding down in 1995. If HUD had delayed its
scheduled sales while new advisors were being procured, some of those distressed
asset departments would have been dismantled, and the number of major bidders
who would then later participate in HUD's sales would be reduced. Such lower
competition would have translated into lower prices, again on the order of millions
of dollars.

25.  Hamilton agreed to take on the additional sales advisory work that
HUD urgently requested in 1995. At the same time, Hamiltonrcontinued to advise
HUD to seek additional loan sale advisors.

26.  Insummer 1995, HUD propo-sed legislation, called “mark-to-
market,” that would enable HUD to restructure thousands of over-subsidized

multifamily projects, many of which had been financed with syndicated tax shelters

over the Iast two decadcs T’rus uunatwe mobxllzed the prwate subsidized rental

i i A Rt
e e

houswg real estate owners and developers in Opposmon because they stood to lose
substantial fee income if property ownership and servicing were opened to the
competitive selection and price negotiation process. In addition, private investors
were concerned about adverse income tax éspécts of the legislation.

27. By late 1995, HUD had sold over $2.8 billion in loans from its
portfolio, saving the government an estimated $540 rnil_lion in costs. These savings
represented improved private servicing of the loans by winning bidders. The loan
sales provided substantial improvement in HUD’s recovery rates and lower
expense rates than prior work-out strategies that had been usled by HUD and its
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contractors. Property owners and managers who were now required to meet
contractual debt servicing obligations, renegotiate their loans or face foreclostre
did not always welcome the loan sales. Existing HUD owners and managers could
no longer negotiate such attractive work-out costs with HUD and its contractors,
like Ervin & Associates, but instead would have to negotiate with more aggressive
loan sale winners. Parties who were no longer competitive in the. market place
had every reason to want to stop the loan sale program. |

28.  Notwithstanding the praise of the loan sale program and the fact that
HUD had no complaints about Hamilton's performance, HUD program staff did

receive complaints from defaulted borrowers, owners, managers, and servicers and

political inquiries and interference prompted by them. They suffered, or were

concerned they would suffer, economic loss because of the mcreased efficiency

 caused by HUD s loan sale and rnark-to market effoﬁ fact, de

e e ——

told me in early 1996 that White House officials had told him and Marilyn Davis,
then-Assistant Secretary of Administration, that they wanted to make sure that
Hamilton was not awarded any of the contracts,

/——ﬁzsi.——m—mcm, the T996 Presidential election was in progress,

creating an atmosphere of administrative caution at HUD. As in ail agencies,

politically-appointed officials at HUD wanted to minimize the chance that their
actions during an election year would be publicly criticized or become a subject of

the campaign. This caution and concern provided those who had an interest in
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undermining the loan sale program and hﬁlting the advent of “mark-to-market“
with the opportunity for expressing and effecting their Opposition.

30.  In January 1996, HUD finally hired additional advisors as ’Hamilton
had recommended. Hamilton was among the four selected. The other three were

Merrill Lynch, Cushman Wakefleld, and CS First Boston. Hamilton had

absolutely no role in the selection of these advisors.

31.  Two disappointed bidders -- Ervin & Associates and Ernst & Young
-- protested the award of the four selected by HUD. Rather thﬁn litigating the
issue through the courts, HUD decided to re-open bids for a new evaluation,
Subsequently, CS First Boston dropped out of the competition, and HUD chose
Ernst & Young to be the replacement. Again, Ervin & Associates was not chosen,
and again Hamilton had no part in the selectiop process.

“32. HUD conducted its “Pamally Assmted Sale” in May and June 1996

The Sale of alrnost : $900 ”rmlhon in mulufanuly Ioans col!aterahzed by projects
receiving some form of affordable housing assistance from HUD validated HUD’s
earlier “mark-to-market” proposal and further alarmed large, subsidized real estate
owners and developers, as conventional and corporate servicers continued to
successfully out-bid and out-perform them on both loan sales and subsequent loan
servicing contracts, and they intensified their public relations and lobbying efforts
opposing Hamilton and the loan sales program

33. At about the same time, Ervin & Associates filed another protest,
and, before that was resolved in the administrative process, filed a lawsuit against
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HUD in federal court in June 1996. In addition to filing a 700 paragraph
complaint against the agency, Ervin & Associates also released its complaints and
other allegations to the media. In an apparent attempt to widen its allegations as

broadly as possible, Ervin & Associates included in its charges the claims that

- HUD bad improperly favored Hamilton and also that Hamilton had improperly

favored certain businesses with which it had relationships in the award of contracts

and sub-contracts.

34.  Ervin's actions may have had ulterior motives in addition to
dissatisfaction with the outcome of the HUD contract selection process. As the
largest servicer of HUD multifamily-loans, Ervin had every reason to be upset
when the success of HUD's loan sale program substantially outperformed the

relatively low recoveries HUD had been getting from, as well as the high expense

rates experienced with, Ervin's existing loan servicing. In addition, Ervin’s

e e g o

relatiohships with the ])—epa;t;rﬁent appeared to deteriotgte as his additional bids on
asset management contracts and financial advisory contracts were not successful.
35.  The Ervin & Associates’ complaint and public relations campaign
created media attention and publicity. See Exhibit E. It also provided critics of
HUD and especially the loan sale program and “mark-to-market” proposals with
ammum'tiorn. HUD and the other defendants felt this pressure. Despite the obvious
motives for Ervin & Associates’ complaint, the fack of any role Hamilton had in
the selection of contract winners, and the track record of success and savings that
Hamilton had created (albeit at the expense of defaulted borrowers and the existing
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servicing and property management infrastructure), in August 1996, HUD and all
or some of the other defendants decided to open an Inspector General inquiry into
various of the charges that Ervin & Associates was making.

36.  When HUD and all or some of the other defendants opened the

inquiry into Hamilton that is at issue in this action, HUD was close to concluding

an audit that its IG Office had undertaken of the entire loan sale program in early

1996. This audit was conducted by the Denver Field Office of the HUD IG, rather
than the IG’s headquarters in Washington, to insure that the audit was done
independently, by those with no prior knowledge of or bias towards the program.
In the.spring and summer of 1996, before the publicity generated by the Ervin &
Associates complaint, members of the audit team told me and other Hamilton

officials that they were working on a positive report, and that a circulation draft

~ with positive comments was already prepared.

37.  The allegations by Ervin & Associates gﬁd the média to which it had
spoken also spawned inquiries from Congress and the Department of Justice. The
now accelerating snowball of inquiries were all directed at either HUD or its
financial advisors, including Hamilton.

38. In summary, by mid-1996, HUD was faced with the past criticism
of its troubled loan portfolio, the Controversy surrounding its decision to undertake
its ambitious loan sale program and its even more controversial “mark-to-market”
proposal, the new attention the loan sale program was getting because of its
success at saving the government money and because of the media’s inquiries, the
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need to defend itself against Ervin & Associates’ complaint, and the questions that
were being raised by Congress and others. Because of these events, HUD and all
or some of the other defendants decided to retreat from its support of its

commitment to the program and to Hamilton. More than that, HUD and the other
defendants began acting in a way to make it céntract with Hamilton the scapegoat
for the criticisms and scrgtiny being directed at HUD.

F. Defendants Began Taking Steps, Puttine Hamilton Out Of
Business.

39.  Separate from the HUD IG Denver field office audit of the entire
FHA loan sale program, which was almost completed and which I and others at
Hamilton had been told would result in positive conclusions, the HUD IG opened
up an investigation into Hamilton itself. By August of 1996, the IG began issuing

broad and burdensome subpoenas to Hamilton.

40, This (in effgco_5_'_3991'1_‘1_i_D_VQSIigatiQ_I_l_Mgf:_ga;nﬁlton.hasalreadv lasted - oo

for 17 months, with long periods of silence punctuated by short bursts of activity.
Despite the mountains of information that Hamilton has provided to the IG over the
span of the inquiry, there is no evidence that the HUD IG has spent its time
learning, understanding and acquiring the depth of knowledge about mortgages,
loan sales and optimization that it will need to do a real inquiry.

41. At this point, the HUD IG has issued three sﬁbpoenas to Hamilton
and one to me. The first two subpoenas were issued to Hamilton more than a year
and five months ago, on August 6 and August 22, 1996. See Exhibit B (August

1996 Subpoenas). The third subpoena was issued to Hamilton on October 24,
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1997. See Exhibit C (October 1997 Subpoenas). Although 14 months elapsed
5etween the second and third subpoenas, much of the information requested in the
third subpoena was repetitive of that requested in the earlier subpoenas, suggesting
that for more than a year the IG made no progress on its investigation or that the
newest subpoena was issued solely to harass H@lton.

42. Moreover, the manner in which this investigation IS being conducted
is both not credible and not professional, illustrating bad faith. When 1G auéiitors
have in recent weeks interviewed a former Hamilton employee closely involved in
the loan sale program, it became clear from their questions that they are no further
along in understanding the basic facts about Hamilton's work for HUD nor the
loan sale program than they were at the start of the investigation. For example,
they demonstrated very limited knowledge of how loan sales were conducted, what

bid procedures were used, and how optimization worked. Their questions failedto ~ = -

e e DOV -0y -OTE-dEp nterviews conducted Tong before. 1 the same

period, in November 1997, Hamilton delivered 101 boxes to their attorneys to be
made available to HUD IG attorneys after they stated that it was urgcntlfor the IG
investigators to have access to them. Yet since that time, no one has performed a
detailed review of the contents or copied them but only counted the number of
boxes delivered.

43. It obviously would not comport with the actions HUD and the other
defendants were taking to have the Denver audit report, complimentary to the loag
sale program and Hamilton's role in it, be disclosed.
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44.  Despite the completion of the interviews and the meetings with me
and other Hamilton officials in which IG investigators indicated the report was
drafted and ready to be released, HUD has never released it or indicated why it has
not done so. When I and other Hamilton officials in August 1596 asked

Washington IG Office officials whether the Office was going to withhold the report

because of the other actions being taken against Hamilton, defendant Gaffoney

herself stated that it would be unethical to not release the Denver Office’s audit
report. Nevertheless, this 14-month-old report, which in a cifculation draft
appeared to be favorable to the program and Hamilton's role in it, has never been
released.

45.  The IG's Office and/or others at HUD have persisted in leaking to
the media privileged and confidential, as well as known inaccurate and misleading,

information about Hamilton and the On-going investigation.

46. In August 1996, the IG purportediy began an investigation of
Hamilton. However, soon thereafter, and long before any substantive conclusion
could have been warranted, I was told by a reporter at U.S. News & World Report
that someone at HUD identified as of "the highest-authority in the HUD IG's
office” leaked misinformation that Hamilton was guilty of criminal misconduct.

47.  Information was leaked by the HUD IG Office to The Washingron
Times in October 1997 about a HUD IG subpoena of Hamilton's records even

before the subpoena was issued or delivered to Hamilton. See Exhibit R.
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48.  In February 1996, Hamilton notified HUD that certain documents
requested under the Freedom of Information Act ("FOIA"), as part of the bidding
process, should be treated as confidential and not be disclosed, as is customary for
most businesses submitting these kinds of proposals. HUD's FOIA Office assured
Hamilton that it would not release this infonnat.ion and would treat it as proprietary
to Hamilton and subject to exclusion from FOIA under the Privacy Act.
‘Nonetheless, excerpts of these documents, which had been supplied to the HUD IG
in early fall 1996 pursuant to the original subpoena, were leaked to the press.
These excerpts, as well as the misinformation leaked in October 1996, were
included in a-November 11, 1996 U.S. News & World Report story about
Hamtlton. Many of these same leaks have been repeated in the trade press (i.e.,
Housing Affairs’ Letter and Housing and Development Reporter). See Exhibit F.

49, On October 20, 1997, bankers at Franklin National Bank,

Hamilton's primary creditor, told me that they receive‘t} an anonymous call stating
that Hamilton was going out of business. This occurred right after HUD sent a
hand-delivered letter to Hamiltor canceling its crosscutting contract. I was calling
the to notify it of the cancellation, but was told by the bank that some anonymous
person already made the “going out of business” call.

50.  Then, in November 1997, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") initiated an audit of Franklin National Bank’s loan to
Hamilton soon after HUD and the other defendants began leaking information to
the press and taking other actions directed at Hamilton. This audit appears unusual
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as that very same loan had been previously reviewed by the regulators just a few

months earlier in mid-1997.

531.  Not content with its own levels of review, summonses and inquiries

¥

I was told by people on Capitol Hill that the HUD IG has been lqbbying staff
members of the Committee on Banking, Housin;g, and Urban Affairs of the Senate
to hold hearings on the issue of HUD’s contract problems, with emphasis on
.Hamilton’s activitic;:s under the financial advisory contract. This would result in
Hamilton's having to respond to and pay for additional requests-and subpoenas,
and use time that it needed to keep itself in business, to comply with new inquiries.
52.  On December 31, 1997, Hamilton was asked by the Department of

Labor to help provide materials for an “inquiry” by the General Accounting Office

(“GAO™) on a closed joint venture contract that was Hamilton’s only non-HUD

<eeo . federal contract except for an earlier contract-with the RTC. See Exkibit T, On

e Jamuary §71998; GAO hereipon issued {EE;-‘MS'WH serics‘_df comprehensive v..rr-‘i=tt3n
questions to Hamilton, demanding answers § days later, by January 13, 1998. The
Department of Labor had audited this very same contract in 1996 during the
normal closing procedures.
53.  In August 1997, the Internal Revenue Service began a tax audit of
the Hamilton profit sharing plan. This occurred Just prior to HUD's termination of
its crosscutting services contract with Hamilton. No Hamilton entity had ever

before been audited by the Internal Revenue Service.
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.54.  In August 1996, I asked Sean Gaffney if the Denver audit would be
withheld because it complimented the program and Hamilton, to which Ms.
C;affney replied that such action would be unethical. Hamilton was then promptly
served with the second August 1996 subpoena.

55.  Finally, after 17 months, the del.ivery of tens of thousands of pages
of electronic and paper documents, the expendirure_ of over $1 million in

.reSponding to HUD's ;cquests, the loss of business, the laying off of employees,
and the prospect that the campaign against it would not end, on December 10,
1997, I sent a letter from Hamilton's legal counsel to the Department of Justice and
to HUD asking that the investigation be closed, that summonses be discontinued; -
that funds owed the company be released, and that Hamilton’s good name be
restolred and Hamilton be cleared of any wrongdoing. See Exhibits H and G.

* 56. "'The letter was delivered by hand to the agencies in the morning.

Thai afternoon, Hamilton’s attorneys were called by Igdith Heatherton, counsel to
the HUD IG, to ask if they would accept service of a new summons, this one, for
the first time, directed at me personally and seeking all of my personal financial
records at Franklin National Bank from October 1993 to December 1997, See

Exhibit I. The period went far beyond the term of the crosscutting contract, and

this subpoena increased the anxiety of Franklin National Bank, which had refused

to extend additional credit to Hamilton, causing further injury to the company.
57.  In October through December 1996, Hamilton discovered a

discrepancy between the instructions in the packages sent to would-be bidders of
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e S8 NOHE ST thiese Gtficials made any Tesponse to or criticized Hamilton

defaulted FHA loans and the operation of the “optimization model,“ a software
program by which the bids submitted would be evaluated, in part of the loan sale
program. Hamilton promptly brought this discrepancy to the attention of defendant
Retsinas and other senior HUD officials when the error was understood and
quantified. At that point, Hamilton’s work had helped save the government $1.9

billion in avoided costs, according to estimates reviewed and approved by OMB.

These savings would rise to $2.1 billion by the time the crosscutting contract was

terminated in October 1997. Hamilton estimated the potential maximum effect of
the modeling discrepancy on sales proceeds to be $3.8 million, or approximately
0.05% of total proceeds and 0.18% of total net savings. Hamilton acted as an
agent in the loan sale and not as a guarantor or underwriter and was not paid

according to net proceeds. HUD and Hamilton recognized at the time that

Hamilton was not financially liable for the-discrepancy.

at the time. Nor did these or any other officials, including officials from the Office
of the IG, ever dispute or independently try to verify Hamilton’s estimate of the
potential effect of the discrepancy on loan sale proceeds at that or any other time.
Indeed, the officials notified said they appreciated the fact that Hamilton had found
the discrepancy and had taken corrective actions so as not to disrupt the progress of
scheduled loan sales.

59.  Hamilton corrected the optimization model floor bid instructions and
even instituted new and more stringent internal control prdc‘cdures and then
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proceeded in its work as HUD'’s crosscutting financial advisor. Three subsequent
sgles of defaulted mortgage loan packages went forward, with representatives of
HUD's program offices and General Coupsel present, and with Hamilton playing
this role over the next nine months. As before, Hamilton did the work, submitted
invoices, and was paid in a timely manner.

60.  Thenin Aprxl 1997, HUD notified Hamilton without warning that

HUD intended to consohdate various contracts and would cancel the crosscutting

contract “for convenience of the government” at the time a new crosscutting
contract was to be put into place. No default, breach, or failure to perform by
Hamilton was aIIeged.r D¢5pitc the claim that this cancellation was for
“convenience,” HUD also announced that it would be seeking bids on a new

similar advisory contract. At this time, 2 year was left on the contract, with

. payments o Hamilton-ot‘_approx-imately- $10 million still to "Bé‘p"a'id S

© 61 HAnilteT d8cided o enter the blddmg for any new contract that was
awarded and to find additional or alternative work to replace that which was going
to be potentially lost. The companies planned their activities around use of the
money still owed by HUD and still being earned. ’Ncilhcr HUD nor any of the
defendants made any statements that Hamilton’s work should stop while a new
contract was designed; por did the defendants indicate that HUD would stop paying
on the invoices submitted for the work that had been or was being done.

62.  In light of the announced plans for a new contract, Hamilton
developed a new non-HUD related project requiring it to raise $10 million in thf_.
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—of-HUD's multifamily-programs;-and even thousti Octobér 17 was the date HUD

first year. It began preparations for a private placement memorandum and

solicitation. Again, it was counting on HUD to follow government regulatiqns and

on HUD's history of paying Hamilton for work being done and invoices béing

sent. The new project required approximately $2.0 million for its start-up phase.
63.  Despite announcing in April that it would end the crosscutting

contract only when a new contract was awarded, HUD then notified Hamilton on

October 17, 1997, by a hand-delivered letter, that it was abruptly ordering

Hamilton to stop work immediately, even though no new awards had been made,
even though Hamilton had submitted a new bid of its own which was gtiil pending,
even though Hamilton was still enggged in pfoviding advisory services to HUD
under the contract, including services in connection with two pending loan sales,

the preparation of HUD's Fiscal Year 1999 budget request, and the reengineering

approved the payment for services provided through September 26, 1997. See
Exhibit D.

64.  Prior to October 17, 1997, despite Hamilton's weekly meetings with
and written reports to authorized program and cor}tracting representatives,
Hamilton received no notification under the contract that any problem existed. In
fact, within a few weeks of this action, HUD's Chief Financial Officer testified at
Congress that “we have a successful asset sales program that has made us the

leader in the federal government in this area (emphasis added).”
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- funds, HUD official Annette-Hancock stated-thar: “The Department is currently

~ withhiolding a1y furthér payments duc and owing Harilton under the terms and

65. HUD then withdrew the pending financial advisory RFP and thereby
suspended the loan sale program. As a result, HUD ended up stopping all loan
sales, which is causing HUD substantial losses on advisory fees expended in
preparing for the canceled sales and on future losses of recoveries on the loans as
they deteriorate in HUD's portfolio. These losses far exceed the $3.8 million loss
that HUD alleges Hamilton contributed to causing. Real Estate Alert reported in

lts November 17, 1997 issue that HUD was “abruptly” canceling loan sales
pending replacement of Hamilton as crosscutting financial advisor. See Exhibit K.

A HUD spokesman was reported as saying, “we’re trying to ﬁgure things out.”

F. Hamilton has repeatedly requested that defepdants stop
ignoring or violating regulations in withholding funds due
and owing to it and defendants have refused.

66.  Inthe October 17 letter announcing HUD's decision to withhold

conditions of Contract DU100C000018505 and Task Order 001 until such time as
the debt [the $3.8 million Hamilton estimated the bidding discrepancy might cost]
is satisfied” (emphasis added). See Exhibir L. The October 17 letter goes on to
ask that Hamilton make this as a “voluntary payment.”

67.  Hamilton objected to HUD's withholding of payments as illegal. As
early as October 22, 1997, Hamilton’s attorney’s asked to meet with HUD as soon

as possible. Hamilton has repeatedly asked HUD officials to pay the invoices and
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not to hold them yp as part of any action HUD was taking against Hamilton as part
of the so-called investigation or otherwise. See Exhibit M.

68.  Neither HUD nor any of the other defendants responded.
Therefore, on December 10, 1997, I sent another letter to HUD complaining about
HUD’s action and pointing out how they violat.ed regulations and failed to respond

to Hamilton's request for a deferment, especxally in light of their insurance

coverage. See Exhibit G. Moreover, in my letter of December 10, 1997, 1

requested that if HUD did nothing else, it at least should issue a fina] decision so
that Hamilton could appeal the withholding of funds under the Contract Disputes
Act, providing Hamilton with an avenue to challenge the withholding. In
addition, Hamilton's attorneys sent a letter to the Department of Justice on the

same day explaining the impact the delayed investigation and subpoenas had and

were h‘aving"on Haﬂ'}jIEOﬂ—, -and 'r.hatHUD Wagwithoutjegal—aumority ’fdi_ Tt T

VI S e i S a1

attorneys, nor I received a written response or explanation from HUD or the
defendants.

69.  On December 22, 1997, Hamiltonlattorncys and I sent a series of
letters to HUD again complaining about the agency’s actions, requesting that the
withheld funds be released and explaining the harm the agency was causing,
including a letter I wrote to Secretary Cuomo himself, explaining that the agency’s
actions and inactions would soon cause Hamilton to go out of business. See
Exhibit N.
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70.  HUD sent a response on December 22, 1997 stating that it had not
lgaked information to the media and that the agency expected full compliance with
the subpoenas to which Hamilton objected. See Exhibit 0. The response made no
statements regarding the other issues that had been raised. On December 23,
1997, HUD officials, after over two months of .refusing to meet when asked in
October 1997, did agree to a meeting to be held on January 2, 1998, Hamilton

“explained that this was p;.lshing it to the brink of disaster bccau.sc, amoné other
things, another payroll was due on December 31, 1997. HUD did not provide
Hamilton with any earlier date.

71. On December 29, 1997, I again wrote to HUD stating that it had no

' Basis to withhold the payments.t.)ecaus".: Justice Department attorneys had now

indicated that the money could be delinked from the investigation of Hamilton and

Hamilton’s insurance..company.' had reiterated the coverage of a liability policy.

L b oSO LT IEPUR Y
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72. On December 30, 1997, Deputy General Counsel Howard Glaser
sent a response to Hamilton. See Exkibit Q. In his letter, Glaser again asserted
that HUD had regulatory authority, pursuant to 48’ C.F.R. § 32.610, to withhold
the funds that the agency had conc.:eded were due and owing. Specifically, Glaser
wrote: “HUD is exercising its common law right, and right in accordance with the
Federal Acquisition Regulations, to withhold and/or set-off the debt. .. There is
nothing in [the contracts with Hamilton] which would preclude HUD from
exercising these rights . . .”
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73.  OnlJanuary 2, 1998, Hamilton’s artorneys met with Howard Glaser,
John Kennedy, John Opitz, and others from HUD. Again, they ;:omplained about
HUD’s actions and inactions and specifically requested the release of funds so thar
Hamilton could stay in business to contest the events described in this complaint,
Again, they contested that the FAR set-off reguiation did not apply to the situation
of an error reported by Hamilton a year before, that HUD had not 'followed its
lregulations in undertaking such a set-off provision (e.g., detennin-ing the debt
arnount, issuing a final decision, granting a request for deferment), or that HUD
was acting outside its discretion in applying this regulation in light of the
irreparable harm being caused to Hamilton (i.e., putting it out of business). HUD

officials stated that they had the power to take the actions and provided no relief to

Hamilton.
. G..  Defendants’ Actions Have-Caused-And Continue-To Cauge
7 Irreparable Harm In That They Are Deswncd Qr Wil Result
O U S S VU In ’Pﬂm'ﬁmtﬁ" OUTUTBﬁ S!I'ICSS —

74.  Publicity that a company is under an Inspector General investigation
and under suspicion of criminal wrongdoing can cause the company to lose
business and financial backing. Because of the potential impact of publicity and
sensitive to preserving an entity’s presumption of innocence, there are strict
regulations which prohibit leaking of law enforcement information. Indeed,
virtually all codes of professional responsibility and court rules include

prohibitions against leaks of investigative materials to the public. In addition,
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various statutes protect against the disclosure of information about a company or of
the fact that the company asks to be exempt from disclosure.

75. In addition to the harm that can be caused by even accurate publicity
about an investigation, inaccurate and incomplete information can cause even
greater harm, particularly if that information réises doubts about the core
operations of business, such as the financial mtegnty of a fiduciary concern like a
ﬂnanc:al advisor. If government agents provide the press with only one side or
with misleading bits and pieces of their work, then subsequent news articles can be
even more harmful to those involved.

76.  As aresult of the leaks that have occurred in this case, Hamilton has
been told by prospective clients and business partners that they do not want to do
business with it. Few federal, state or local government agencies, or private

- clients want to contract with a firm that is under federal mvest:gatlon Thxs

i T e e 2 o s -t Y

e mvesnganon is especmlly harmf{il to Hamxlton S potenual advxsory and broker-
dealer activities.

77.  Similarly, these leaks have made it impossible for Hamilton to raise
new capital from financial institutions, private, investors or the capital markets,
thereby restricting Hamilton's access to the capital needed (o pursue its new
business interests or significantly raising Hamilton’s cost of capital.

78.  In addition, HUD's actions have been financially devastating.
Hamiiton’s income flow has gone from approximately $900,000 per month in

September 1997 to essentially $0 per month today. Hamilton has had to lay off _
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employees. In order to make the November payroll for the remaining employees, I
had to liquidate my retirement savings in Hamilton’s profit-sharing plan and in the
process incur substantial taxes and penalties for taking an early distribution.
Hamilton has had to cancel contracts, is being threatened with legal action by
contractors and vendors seeking payment of debts. and. in addition to its payrol]
costs, is accumulating substantial debs.

79.  Hamilton has spent considerable time and expense building its
reputation, its potential client base, and the expertise among its personnel and
business associates. With respect to Hamilton's remaining employees, this
includes a licensed architect, investment banker, broker-dealer, systems analyst,
computer scientist, attorney, graphic designer, certified public accountant,
communications specialist, and Internet specialist.

Comiesem e 800 Unlessit is able to have the $1.5 million it already has eé;med and

B R L)
ot m et

e 'propérly invoiced released by HUD, plus the funds that w1]l be du;'ffom HUD in
future audited contract costs, plus the funds that are being withheld for contract
close-out expenses, and l{uless it is able to clear its good name of the
unsubstantiated charges openly and surreptitiously leveled against it, Hamilton will
have no ability to finance continu-ing operations, to pursue new business
opportunities, or to keep the personnel and clients in which it has invested so
much. No award of damages in the future in this and other litigation will be
sufficient to compensate Hamilton for these losses or enable Hamilton to overcome

the irreparable loss to its business reputation. Without immediate release,
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Hamilton will face the likelihood of having to close down and be forced into
bankruptcy to obtain protection from its creditors.

81.  Hamilton’s situation is urgent. By the time that defendants decide
that HUD has investigated Hémilton enough or even by the time this Court will
hear the merits of this case in the ordinary scheﬁulc of the courts, it will be too
late. Once it defaults on its future obligations, has to lay off more or the rest of its
.staff and loses its potennal private sector clients, qumlton will not be able to put
things back together if later on it should be found to have been right on all pending
issues and will not be in a position to pursue its current new business interests

Further affiant sayeth not.

Dated this 8" day of January, 1998,

o s

Subscribed and sworn to before me this g

otary Public

My commision expires 9/30/02
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" In the two sections that
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HOME: LEGAL: INVESJIGATIONSIAUDITS

“Swat" is the term we ug

With the HUD loan salef

e Salaries were ke

“Introduction « Our Story + Tim~ling -

: to refer 1o a multiple action/agency effort by govemment agencies, often with the participation and ass
H Hamilton was helping to reengineer and decentralize government to advantage taﬁpayers and commun
it low, bonuses were paid with equity, all checks required multiple signatures, monthly financials were p

s were kept within the United States and all personai financial records were disclosed to Hamilt‘on’s chi¢

All of Fitts's ass

« Hamilton was ay

o Because of the v

dited by Big 6 accounting firms, had a Board of Directors and audit committee overseeing the Chief Fine

Fiousness with which the charge of "conflict of interest” was raised through carefully placed "rumors” ar

Unfortunately, Haiiiltoi

In viewing this pattern
» The nature of a

» The best way to

did not anticipite the ferociousness with which HUD would attack and that such attack would involve E

ffow, we have atiemipted to describe all the events over the last-four years that we judge may have const

would make several comments:

ccessful covert operation is to achieve one’s goals without the general public’s being aware that a single

Mrevent someone from harming your credibility by exposing the mruth is to carry out a preemptive attack i

e Inmany, if not rHOSL instances of scandalous and immoral behavior by those in positions of authority, plausible deniabilit

It is not necessary to the buccess of a covert operation that each participant has the same or even similar interests to those of other
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Section H: Suspiciofls Occurrences; Coincidence or Unknown Government Agency or Private Governi

United States D

List: Audits, Investigations, Inquires, Leaks, and Conflicts of Interest

Federal Goverament Agencies

Fhe Hlite House

{!S Department

partment of Housing gind Urbap Development (Qui Tam)

Justice. Civil Division, Commerciql Liticarion Branch

United States Ce

R AN)

Unidted Stares Ddbartment of Housing and Urban Development

Larrod Stutes D

puyimend of Laboy

Luited Stares Fe

Fedveral Courts
Federal Election

Commission

General Accoun

ng Office

Internal Revenu

Service

Voral Deposit insurance Corporation ("FDIC™}

The Smear Calllpﬂigi'l: Whispers, Leaks, and Negative Press

District of Colu

Private Parties

Hamilton's Bank

Hamilton's Erro

und Omissions Insurance Carrier

1bia Government and State Asencies

crtment of Tax and

UNITED STATES|]

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ON

, requiring Harmilton to produce by

t 13 an exhaustive amount of

ents, including documents and records
ing to two sealed bid auctions for
family mortgages, contract accounting
since the inception of work for HUD
amilton financial statements for 1992 -
e subpoena asserts that HUD had
Ihation indicating that Hamilton may
pad information relevant to an "ongoing

invegligation.”

BEHALF OF DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (QUI TAM) ]
Date Des¢ription Persons Affected or Involved/Cost
August 6, The HUD OIG serves The Hamilton The Federal False Claims Act requires that Hamilton
1996 Secufjties Group, Inc. a subpoena duces be informed that it is the *Target” of a Qui_Tam suit

when it is served with a subpoena. Delegating the
Investigation from the Department of Justice ("DOJ*)
to The US Department of Housing and Urban
Develepment ("HUD"), which is not permitted by the
Act, DOJ claims is not obligated to comply with the
disclosure provisions of the Law. Hamilton believes
that if the government had cemplied with the
disclosure provisions, it would be a financiaily
successful company today. This was the first of many
efforts by the government 1o obfuscate and omit
critical information. Subpoena preparation service and
response required involvement of the HUD QIG
lawyers, US Marshall Office employees, Hamilton's
law firm, Hamilton board, Hamilton "Jedi Knights"
teamn {organized to review documents and deal with
the subpoena) and Harnilton information systems team
{to write programs to locate and segregate information
from Hamilton's server and employee laptops).

l
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PARTIES WITH ACCESS TO NON-LETHAL WEAPONS AND HIGH-TECH
SURVEILLANCE AND WIRE-TAPPING EQUIPMENT

—
Date

Description

Persons Affected or
Involved/Cost

February,
1997

A break-in attemipt occurs at Fraser Court while Fitts is in China.
The first floor tenant reports that someone was throwing rocks at a

window.

November,
1996

Catherine Austin Fitts moves into Fraser Court (a converted coach
house located in an alley behind a mansion that now serves as the
headquarters of the Church of Scientology in the Dupont Circle of
Washington, DC). After a number of similar incidents, and fearing
that she may become a target as the result of her business activities,
Fiits purchases an expensive closed circuit/video alarm system and

acquires a dog.

Spring, 1997

Fitts complains of unexplained buzzing at night following unusual
construction on the roof of apartment building next door, For the
first time-in her life she has trouble sleeping, and experiences muscle
cramps and unusyal symptoms.

|=
Summer, 1997

A tenant in the ground floor apartment of Fitts's residence at 7 Fraser
Court is mugged in the alley surrounding the house by an attacker
whom she describes as an "MBA-type" made up to look like street
person. She expresses the opinion that he was part of covert
operations/harassment, not a real thief. Several weeks later she is

mugged again in a similar incident.

Fall, 1998

Spring/

i

Summer, 1998 ||

—telleFirm 1t il

A close friend of Fitts moves in so Fitts is no longer living alone,

A masseuse who gave a massage near the French doors in'the master
bedroom of 7 Fraser Court complains of a pair of |aser-like burns
placed on her back and stomach in a manner she believed indicated
*entrance™ and "éxit™ poinfs. When she consults a doctor, the doctor
is not able to ldenhfy what could have caused bumns of this sort. She
f g-siicm;mwstbicwcapuns“?ms““
believes:this is absurd until soon thereafter she wakes up in a cold

sweat in the middle of the night saying "cyclotron,” a tetm she has
never heard before. The masseuse thereafter refuses to give massages
near the door on later occasions. This is the same French door,

which leads out to a roof garden, that later falls off its hinges,
apparently as the result of vibrations (see entry below). On another
occasion, the masseuse, following a session at Fraser Court, reports
she has been followed by two cars in sequence from Fraser Court to
her street in a Virginia suburb of Washington. J

L

Aprit, 1998 Hamilton's offices are left by government in dreadful state. Pizza, The worst part was the smell.
food, and cigarettes ground into the rug, are clear indications that This is serious spiritual warfare.
much was done to systematically harm office and its beautiful Fitts funds the clean-up out of
“spirit”. This office had once won an Advance Technology best personal funds; another Solan
design award given by the American Architects [nstitute . The employee leads a cleaning team
design was an "open office” layout that resulted in substantially in the hardest clean up there s,
lower cost and space per employee. It was designed around a Morale suffers, but kindness on
sophisticated high-tech telephone and computer system that the part of building
permitted flexible workforce and outsourcing as well as management made the
telecommuting and "hoteling.” 4"_ expenditure worthwhile

Late spring, Catherine Fitts hears footsteps on the first floor above her when she Neighborhood police, who are

1998 is working in the first floor Solari offices at Fraser Court late one called on muitiple occasions

Saturday night with her dog at her feet. She finds that the roof deck
door has been pried open, but nothing appears to have been stolen.
On another occasion, when she arrives home, her burglar alarm has
been set off. When police arrive, she reports that she has heard
houseguests on the roof with their guests and believes they have set

and are given license numbers
of cars that appear to be
engaged in surveillance, appear
to be confused and unsure
whether to believe the stories

nff the alarm — nnkby later daec che dicraver that ane hancsonest wac

thev hear Tha oardensr whn




roof garden for plants that
might have been left there by
intruders in an attempt to set up
Fitts for a drug bust. Fitts
harbors these suspicions after
reading about seizures of
valuable property by federal
law enforcernent personnel. She
fears authorities may be
planning to seize her only
remaining asset: her home.

L

Cars of Solari employees parked in the alley around the coach house
appear targeted for parking tickets. One employee never received
notice of any fines, but his car is towed away for more than S1,000
in fines and penalties when parked off-street the foltowing year.

The employee was afraid to
retrieve the car, believing that

the police might have planted
drugs in it, so the car is given
up to the city. Presumably, the
car is sold ar auction for less
than its vaiue, and the employee
never hears about it again.

Winter, 1999

Physical evidence of strange vibrations appears at Fraser Court: an
iron planter falls out of a brick wall; French doors in Fitts’s bedroom
come loose from their hinges: another resident of the house loses
seven crowns in her teeth during a three-month period (and her
dentist confirms that vibrations such as those experienced by
earthquake victims have been known to cause this type of
phenomenon).

I_ These occurrences are

expensive 10 correct at a time
when Solari employees have

minimal health insurance and
monetary resources.

A} perch.. Click to memo on symptoms in Gideon archive..._.. . ... ..

Buzzing at night grows worse in regular patern from 9am - 5pm.
Fitts/Solari enagage in various attempts to hire private security ﬁrm]
but they decline to become involved after expressing initial interest.
One consultant suggests that Fitts purchase birds to test for non-
lethal weapons and airbome biological agents in a canary-in-the-
mine tactic. Fitts purchases two birds. For the first night, the buzzing
stops. It resumes at a much lower level the following night. The next
moming the birds are disoriented and siuggish and one falls off its

i
I

s wiherme e i

“neighborhood Kids, without any promptinig, ask whether he rioticed

someone is following him. At around this time, when Fitts is on her
way to church on a Sunday moming, a car tries to run her off the
road.

Catherine Fitts wakes up to intolerable, middle-of-night
vibrations/rays followed by diarrhea, which is also experienced by a
housemate and pets. The uncomfortable symptoms when she sleeps
in her room lead Fitts to in an adjoining walk-in dressing closet and
other places around her house and she. On these same occasions, the
following moming she and a housemate wake up exhausted or sick.
| The same housemate experiences an inexplicable fall down the stairs
leading to the roof garden and suffers moderately serious injuries. A
pet dog "goes wild" when she detects something out of the ordinary
on the roof garden on several cccasions. link to Memo on Nen-
lethal weapon symptoms. A private detective who is called in
confirms that the telephones are tapped and wams that low- grade
biclogical agents are the primary risk in situations like this. After
this visit, he is unable to perform further consulting work due to a
big international security job.

1598-9

Solari victims experience
moderately disabling and
highly uncomfortable or painfu
caonditions, lose sleep, live in a
state of anxiety and
hypersensitivity to even
ordinary occurrences. Many
friends to whom they describe
these phenomena express either
fear or suspicion that the
victims are somehow
"imagining things.” Doctors
and dentists who are consulted
about symptoms give quizzical
looks 10 Solari employees when
the subject of nonlethal
weapons is broached. Solari
bears the costs of additionat
security precautions (additional
camceras and videosadded to the
550,000 closed-circuit security
system) and costs of retaining a
private detecrive.,

-—‘_-_.-——___'_-_—__-_‘
" Evidence of the use of nonicthal weanons apocars at Fraser Court. " Hamilton's udvisors are hishlv |




Spring, 1998 -
Winter, 2000

L

Solari employces experience long-lasting bronchial illnesses and
develop strange flu-like symptoms over and over. Fitts believes she
has expericnced these symptoms a total of seventeen times between

from December. |998 te February, 2000.

| Time is lost by all employees
and houseguests, and medicai
bills increase.

Throughout
1999

ton's lead counsel suffers a variety of illnesses, including

Ham’
of pnevmonia.

bout

L

=
19498 - 99

's in-house counsel experiences an unusual number o7 fat tires
strange circumstances, and an important appointment book
bears and is never found. Her office computer crashes several
and her home computer unexpectedly crashes, leaving nothing
hard drive. A new computer crashes not long after its

Sota
unde
disa
time:
ont

_purchpse.

Solari's records are left in
fragmented form on many
media and equipment, making
them difficult to access. Some
records are lost. Some work
must be redone. Ernployee
bears the cost of new computer
equipment. Selari pays $500 to
recover Solan information from
a damaged hard drive. This
compounds the problems
caused by the near destruction

of the Hamilton systems and
lost e-mail during the officc
setzure and by the earlter

as the result of subpoena

closing of Hamilton’s offices.

information systems disruptions .

compliance from 1996 until the .

October, 1998

Fitts Rires a member of the Capitol Hill Police Department who has
been{fecommended by members of her church to make a
presqutation to Solari employees regarding security at Fraser Court.
He glles a relatively standard lecture over a 1-2 hour period and is
told {9 let Solari know his fee for the service. Solari receives no bill
or ad¥ice regarding amounts owed, so the accountant waits to hear
fromjthe policeman. He then Soiari's office and is highly abusive to
a So
"now] to the mailroom in a remote part of a House of
R: entatives office building 6 Capitol Hill. )

Fitts and other Solari
employees are stunned at this

i employee and demands that a payment of $500 be delivered |

event. Given parking
restrictions in the Capitol Hill
area, two Solari employees
have to leave work for to
deliver the check in what
amounts to something of a wild
goose chase.

4 January, 1999

ight through the brick wall where an antique metal star has been
red

tPraser Court 15 put o the frdrket for salé o vaise fonds

“Bolari employees suspect a
listening or other hidden device
has been removed and the
intruder who has removed it has
forgotten to replace the star,
leaving a hole. Alternatively, a

to look for such holes being
used to introduce low grade
biological warfare agents.

" security firm has warned Solari

March, 1999

Whefl a contractor employed by a neighbor finds a copy of the front
dooﬁey in the garden, the locks are changed. Soon after this
incidgnt, a dead rat is found directly in front of the front door.

March - May,
1999

Afier p contract for the sale of the Fraser Court house is signed in
Margh, with an upcoming closing scheduled for May, buzzing at
nigh{ gets much more aggressive, and physical symptoms intensify.
Just before maving, Fitts asks her housemate to stay at another

Solaf] employee's house, because she believes her own home is not
safe [pr her friend. Another Solari employee experiences the same
sympgjoms one night in the office when he comes in to do late-night
workl| To stay clear-headed, Fitts sleeps at the home of friends when
they Hre out of town. [Click here to see sales brochure and articie
on sgle of Fraser Court)

Apri), 1999

At arj|evening birthday party for a Selari employee, with a number
of fofmer Hamilton employees in attendance, Fitts's dog goes wild
on ll'ﬂ roof deck. runmng around cxcitedly and trying to dig up

Solari employees wonder if
there is some sort of high

frequency device planted on

S g, AT A
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operations expert believes is an electromagnetic pulse weapon in a
neighboring apartment. Fitts sees the weapon a total of four times
during the time span of a month or two. On one occasion, Fitts spies
the strange, metal, telescope-iike instrument when she returns from a
trip late at night and asks her housemate get out of bed to confirm
that she is not seeing things.” The housemate is mystified, too, and
agrees the obviousness of its positioning and the existence of a light
in the apurtment is suspicious. While standing outside taiking with
neighbors, feeling "terrific.” suddenly experiences the sensation of
being suddenly "shot" by sorme unseen force. On the spot, she
develops severe diarrhea.

skeptical and don't know what
to recommend. When told of
events like this, a number of
Fitts's family members express
concemn that associating with
her would cause them
unnecessary risk and give
consideration to distancing
themselves. This appears to
simply follow the trend of
numerous former colleagues
and friends.

o 1'

ummer, 1998

A friend of Solari's in-house counsel, who is an officer in the US
Army Reserves, asks that the Solari employee not contact her by
telephone or email. She artributes her anxiety to instances in which,
she says, she has been “followed by men in black cars” and has
experienced other disconcerting events after such contacts,
indicating, to her, that she is under surveillance. When this Solari

.€mployee conducts a yard sale at the home of this same friend, the
friend believes that a "customer" wearing an FBI tee-shirt has
appeared for purposes of surveillance.

Whether or not these events are
the result of surveillance, third
parties believe they are and feel
hesitant to continue close
retationships with Solari
employees.

|

—

—
1996 - 97 ’

Problems occur with neighbors and with the zoning board and
permitting authorities in connection with first floor construction at
Fraser Court.

These events cause concem on
the part of Solari employees-
and contractors.

and fall, 1998

Late summer WYWhile Solari is attempting to engage in normal business operations,

employees and houseguests at Fraser Court see strange vehicles

traveling slowly and suspiciously through the alley. Individuals on
bicycles and on foot, who appear dressed as homeless persons,
engage in highly intelligent conversations with employees and
guests entering and leaving Fraser Court, leadi elieve the

rndividuals were conductin eill olari receives many
telep i which the cailer does not identify himself or

herself. When employees use a caller-ID system, they find that the
numbers have been blocked. Constant efforts are needed to deal with

7 l Ervin and Hamilton creditor subpoena

. ervers, Ear.example, one server targeted:Fitts on. Sundays, when -
she regularly left the house to attend church. A weekend guest was
followed and accosted by a belligerent subpoena server while
walking Fitts's dog on a Sunday moming before teaving for church.
Another delivered a subpoena during a Solari seminar-workshop at
ijraser Courr.

Acnivities like this make it
difficult or impossible to
conduct routine business
operations. All but the most
loyal employees distance
themselves from these events.
Neighbors behave in a
suspicious manner as if they
have been contacted by
sormeone regarding Fitts,

— F

Solari employees spend time calling the city to request that the city
request towing for suspicious cars that sport, , among other things,
an unusual number of sophisticated-locking antennas. Fitts is
followed to church at night. A hole is discovered in the first floor
brick wall at Fraser court. Solari employees have no way of knowing
how long it has been there. Fitts experiences an unusual, frightening
near accident on the highway that she believes is an intentional
attempt to run her off the road. From then on, she practices defensive
driving, in fear of surveillance and covert operations activities.

Neighbors seem progressively
more distant and careful.
Several former friends and
colleagues default on loans and
other obligations to Fitts,

Late summer,
1998

Fitts’s dear friend and colleague, who had remained loyal since their -
initial assoctation in the 1980s when she served as Fitts’s assistant at
Diilon, Read and who had been one of the founding
shareholder/employees at Hamilton, dies of cancer after a long and
painful illness. Fitts and others believe her illness was exacerbated
by the Hamilton "swat" and, for this reason, the trauma of her death
15 intensified. In a gesture of loyalty and confidence, the shareholder
who died had refused Fitts's offers to sell her Hamilton stock. When
Hamilton closed down, her stock became worthless. As a resuit, the
vatue of her estate was significantly diminished, At the funeral,
tormer Hamiltonians make little or no contact with Fitts and the
other former Hamilton employees at Solari. At the time of the
funeral, Hamiiton's bank conducts joint marketing seminars for
women-owned businesses with Tucker, Flyer and Lewis. Ervin &
Associates’ law firm. When Fitts objects thar Tucker, F Iver has
narticinated in actions that led to a default on Hamilton s hank loan.

The most stressful night of the
year is the 24-hour period
during which Solari employees
fear that she will not be able to
maintain health and disability
msurance coverage as a result
of the discontinuance of
Hamilton’s operations.
Fortunately, alternative
provisions are made at Solari’s
expense.
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